CR06015-2016

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-IS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17.1(b)
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

1. Check the appropriate box:
Preliminary Information Statement

Definitive Information Statement

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter
GMA Holdings, Inc.
3. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization
Philippines
4. SEC ldentification Number
CS20062356
5. BIR Tax Identification Code
244-658-896
6. Address of principal office

Unit 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio
Taguig City

Postal Code

1634

7. Registrant's telephone number, including area code
(632) 982-7777

8. Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders
May 27, 2016, 10:00 a.m., Balducci, G/F Serendra Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City

9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security holders
May 3, 2016

10. In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor

Address and Telephone No.

11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):

Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding and Amount of Debt

Title of Each Class Outstanding



Philippine Depositary Receipts

("PDRs") 846,038,700
13. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes No

If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therein:
Philippine Stock Exchange/PDRs

The Exchange does not warrant and holds no responsibility for the veracity of the facts and representations contained in all corporate
disclosures, including financial reports. All data contained herein are prepared and submitted by the disclosing party to the Exchange,
and are disseminated solely for purposes of information. Any questions on the data contained herein should be addressed directly to

the Corporate Information Officer of the disclosing party.
H

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

GMA Holdings, Inc.
GMAP

PSE Disclosure Form 17-5 - Information Statement for Annual or
Special Stockholders' Meeting
References: SRC Rule 20 and
Section 17.10 of the Revised Disclosure Rules

Date of Stockholders'
Meeting Sep 30, 2016

Type (Annual or

Special) Annual

Time 10:00 a.m.

Venue Balducci, G/F Serendra Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City
Record Date Apr 27, 2016

Inclusive Dates of Closing of Stock Transfer Books
Start Date N/A
End date N/A

Other Relevant Information

Amended to reflect the new date of the ASM

PDR Holders are not stockholders of GMA Holdings, Inc (GHI). and thus are not eligible to attend the GHI ASM.

Filed on behalf by:
Name Ayahl Ari Augusto Chio
Designation Alternate CIO
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CRAM HLCILIDINS G S, 1M,

August 26, 2016

NOTICE TO STOCKHOLDERS: /D
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.
Felipe L. Gozon
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez
Jaime C. Laya
Artemio V. Panganiban
Manuel P. Quiogue
Felipe S. Yalong

Dear Stockholder:

Please be informed that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of GMA Holdings, Inc. has
heen set to September 30, 2016 (Friday) at 10:00 a.m. at Balducci, G/F Serendra, Bonifacio
Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City to consider, discuss or vote on the following

Call to order

Certification and Notice of Quorum

Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders Meeting held on August 13, 2015.
Report of the President

Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the previous year

Election of Directors, including the Independent Directors

Election of the External Auditor

Consideration of such other business as may properly come before the meeting
Adjournment

OO NO O A WN

Any stockholder may vote by proxy provided that such authorization remains unrevoked and on
file with, or is submitted to, the undersigned at the 15/F Sagittarius Building, H.V. De la Costa
Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City.

%

For purposes of the meeting, only stockholders of record as of April 27, 2016 shall be entitled to
vote.

The Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately after the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting. Thank you.

For the Board of Directors:

‘ N/ABROGAR

~ ANNA-TERESA M. GOZO
Corporate Secretary



We are not soliciting your proxy. However, if you are unable to attend the meeting but would
like to be represented thereat, you may accomplish the proxy form herein provided below and
submit the same to the Office of the Corporate Secretary on or before September 26, 2016.
You may deliver the proxy or send it in advance through fax no. (632) 812-0008. Validation of
proxies shall be held on September 28, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. at the GMA Network Center.

PROXY

I/We hereby name and appoint , or in his/her absence, the Chairman
of the meeting, as my/our proxy at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of GMA Holdings, Inc. to
be held at Balducci, G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City on
Friday, September 30, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. and at any postponement or adjournment thereof.

Name

Signature

Date

No. of Shares Held
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SECOND AMENDED SEC FORM 20-IS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Check the appropriate box:

[ ]Preliminary Information Statement

[ v ] Definitive Information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: PHILIPPINES
SEC Identification Number CS200602356

BIR Tax Identification Code 244-658-896-000

Address of principal office Postal Code

UNIT 5D TOWER ONE, ONE MCKINLEY PLACE, NEW BONIFACIO GLOBAL CITY,
FORT BONIFACIO, TAGUIG CITY

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (632) 9827777

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

DATE : September 30, 2016

TIME 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Balducci, G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to
security holders

September 7, 2016

In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor: NOT APPLICABLE

Address and Telephone No.: NOT APPLICABLE
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10.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

GeooN)  AMENDED SEC FORM 20-1S

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE =7

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

s g

fi‘"““””ﬁ?f“}}

——

Check the appropriate box: e
[ ]Preliminary Information Statement
[ v ] Definitive Information Statement
Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: PHILIPPINES
SEC Identification Number CS$200602356

BIR Tax Identification Code 244-658-896-000

Address of principal office Postal Code

UNIT 5D TOWER ONE, ONE MCKINLEY PLACE, NEW BONIFACIO GLOBAL CITY,
FORT BONIFACIO, TAGUIG CITY

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (632) 9827777

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

DATE : September 30, 2016

TIME 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Balducci, G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to
security holders

September 7, 2016

In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor: NOT APPLICABLE

Address and Telephone No.: NOT APPLICABLE

LI



11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of
the RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to
corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding and Amount of Debt
Outstanding
Philippine Depositary Receipts (“PDRs”) 846,038,700

12. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

PDRs/PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

This Information Statement dated September 7, 2016 is being furnished to the stockholders of
record of GMA Holdings, Inc. as of April 27, 2016 in connection with the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting.

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE
REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

ltem 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders.

(a) State the date, time and place of the meeting

Date September 30, 2016

Time 10:00 a.m.

Place: Balducci, G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City

(b) Approximate date on which copies of the information statement are first to be sent to the
security holders:

September 7, 2016



ltem 2. Dissenters' Right of Appraisal

Title X of the Corporation Code of the Philippines grants to a shareholder the right to dissent
and demand payment of the fair value of his share in certain instances, to wit: (1) in case any
amendment to the corporation’s articles of incorporation has the effect of changing and
restricting the rights of any shareholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any
respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class; (2) in case of any sale, lease,
exchange, transfer, mortgage or other disposition of all or substantially all of the corporate
property or assets; (3) in case of merger or consolidation; (4) in case the corporation decides to
invest its funds in another corporation or business or for any purpose other than the primary
purpose; and (5) extension or shortening of the term of corporate existence.

Under Section 42 of the Corporation Code, a stockholder is likewise given an appraisal right in
cases where a corporation decides to invest its funds in another corporation or business. The
appraisal right may be exercised by a stockholder who shall have voted against any of the
foregoing corporate actions proposed in a meeting by making written demand on the
corporation for the payment of the fair value of his/its shares within 30 days after the date on
which the vote is taken. Failure to make written demand within such period shall be deemed a
waiver of suchright. If the proposed action is implemented, the corporation shall pay to a
stockholder surrendering his/its stock certificates the fair value of such shares as of the day
prior to the date on which the vote was taken; however, no payment shall be made to any
stockholder unless the corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such
payment. Within ten days after demanding payment for his shares, a dissenting stockholder
shall submit his stock certificates for notation thereon that such shares are dissenting shares,
failing which, his/its appraisal right shall, at the option of the corporation, terminate. Upon
payment of the purchase price for the shares, the stockholder must transfer his shares to the
corporation.

From the time a demand for payment of fair value until either the abandonment of the corporate
action involved or the purchase of said shares by the corporation, all rights accruing to such
shares, including voting and dividend rights, shall be suspended. If the dissenting stockholder is
not paid the value of the shares within 30 days after the award, his voting and dividend rights
shall be restored.

None of the proposed corporate actions qualifies as an instance for a possible exercise by
security holders of their appraisal rights under Title X of the Corporation Code of the
Philippines.

Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

(@) There is no matter to be acted upon in which any Director or Executive Officer is
involved or had a direct, indirect or substantial interest.

(b) No Director has informed the Company of his opposition to any matter to be acted upon.



B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Securities and Principal Holders Thereof
(@) GMA Holdings, Inc. (“the Company”) has 10,000 common shares subscribed and
outstanding as of August 25, 2016. Every stockholder shall be entitled to one vote for
each common share held as of the established record date.

(b) All stockholders of record as of the closing of business on April 27, 2016 are entitled to
notice of and to vote at the Company’s Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

(c) With respect to the election of directors, a stockholder may vote such number of shares

for as many persons as there are directors to be elected or he may accumulate said
shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected
or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall
see fit; provided, that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the total
number of shares owned by him multiplied by the whole number of directors to be
elected.

(d) The following are the information on security ownership of certain record and beneficial
owners and management:

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners as of August 25, 2016

As of August 25, 2016,

common shares:

the following persons owned at least 5% of the Company’s outstanding

Title of Name, Address of Name of Beneficial | Citizenship No. of Percent-
class Record Owner and Owner and Shares age of
Relationship with Relationship with Held Class
Company Record Owner

Common | Felipe L. Gozon The Record owner is Filipino 3,330 33.30
Unit 5 5D Tower One, One | the Beneficial Owner
McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio City,
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

Common | Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. The Record owner is Filipino 3,330 33.30
Unit 5 5D Tower One, One | the Beneficial Owner
McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio City,
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

Common | Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez The Record owner is Filipino 3,330 33.30
Unit 5 5D Tower One, One | the Beneficial Owner
McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio City,
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

Total 9,990 99.90




Felipe L. Gozon, Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. and Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez are significant
stockholders of the Company.

Security Ownership of Management as of August 25, 2016:

As of August 25, 2016, the Company’s directors and senior officers owned an aggregate of
96,996 common shares of the Company, equivalent to 99.96% of the Company’s issued and
outstanding common capital stock.

Title of Name of Amount and | Citizenship Percentage
Class Beneficial Owner Nature of of Class
Beneficial
Ownership
Common Felipe L. Gozon Direct Filipino 33.30
3,330
Common Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. Direct Filipino 33.30
3,330
Common Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez Direct Filipino 33.30
3,330
Common Artemio V. Panganiban Direct Filipino .04
4
Common Jaime C. Laya Direct Filipino .01
1
Common Felipe S. Yalong Direct Filipino .01
1
Total 99,996 99.96

Voting Trust Holders of more than 5%

The Company is not aware of any person holding more than 5% of shares under a voting trust
or similar arrangement.

Changes in Control

The Company is not aware of any arrangement which may have resulted in a change in control
of the Company during the period covered by this report.

Foreign Equity

The Company’s equity (consisting of common shares) are wholly-owned by Filipinos. While the
PDRs issued by the Company may be owned by any person regardless of citizenship or
nationality, the exercise of which is subject to the nationality restriction under the Philippine
Constitution prohibiting foreign ownership in mass media companies. As a result, the
Underlying Shares (GMA Network, Inc. common shares) resulting from an exercise of the
PDRs may only be issued to Philippine citizens or corporations, cooperatives or associations
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wholly owned and managed by Philippine citizens. Although holders of PDRs will enjoy
economic rights upon occurrence of certain events in respect of the Underlying Shares, they
will not have any voting rights in respect of the Underlying Shares. Such voting rights will, until
exercise of the PDR, be retained and exercised by GHI or the Company. Pending exercise of
the PDRs, the Shares deliverable on exercise of the PDRs shall be owned by and registered in
the name of the Issuer. The Shares underlying the PDRs have been delivered and pledged by
the Issuer to the Pledge Trustee, and held to the order and for the benefit of the Holders as
security for the delivery of the Shares upon exercise of the PDRs pursuant to the Pledge. Until
an exercise of a PDR, the Issuer, as owner of Shares underlying the relevant PDR, will retain
and exercise such voting rights relating to such Shares.

Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers

Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Directors

The following were nominated as members of the Board of Directors for the ensuing year
(2016-2017):

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Felipe L. Gozon

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez

Jaime C. Laya (/Independent Director)

Artemio V. Panganiban (Independent Director)

All the nominees are incumbent directors. The nominees were formally nominated by Gilberto
R. Duavit, Jr. Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. has no relationship with the nominated independent
directors, Jaime C. Laya and Artemio V. Panganiban.

The Company’s By-laws provide that all nominations to the Board of Directors shall be
submitted in writing to the Nomination Committee before the date of the regular annual meeting
of the stockholders. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the qualifications of the
nominees and approved the final list of candidates.

The members of the Nomination Committee are as follows:
Felipe L. Gozon (Chairman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez
Jaime C. Laya

Board of Directors, Officers and Senior Management

Under the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company
comprises five directors, two of whom are independent. The directors have a term of one year
and are elected annually at the Company’s stockholders meeting. A director who is elected to
fill a vacancy holds the office only for the unexpired term of his predecessor. As of August 25,
2016, the Company’s Board of Directors and Senior Management were composed of the
following:



Board of Directors Senior Management
Year Year
Directors and Senior . . - Position L Position
Management Nationality Position was Position was Age
Assumed Assumed
. T Chairman/
Felipe L. Gozon Filipino Director 2007 N/A N/A 76
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. Filipino Director 2007 President/Chief Executive Officer 2007 52
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez Filipino Director 2007 N/A N/A 512
Chief Financial Officer/Chief
Felipe S. Yalong Filipino | Corporate Treasurer 2007 Operating Officer 2012 59
Artemio V. Panganiban Filipino | Independent Director 2009 N/A N/A 79
Jaime C. Laya Filipino | Independent Director 2008 N/A N/A 77
Ronaldo P. Mastrili Filipino | N/A N/A 8;‘;22:’0”9” Chief Accounting 2007 | 50
Anna Teresa M. Gozon- e
Abrogar Filipino | Corporate Secretary 2007 N/A N/A 44
Roberto O. Parel Filipino | N/A N/A gﬁiﬁrwdem’c"mp“a”% 2013 | 60

The following are descriptions of the business experience of each of the Company’s directors,
officers and senior management:

Felipe L. Gozon, Filipino, 76 years old, is the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer of GMA Network, Inc.

Atty. Gozon is a Senior Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila.
Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is also Chairman and CEO of GMA Marketing and
Productions, Inc. and GMA New Media, Inc.; Chairman and President of FLG Management and
Development Corp.; Chairman of Alta Productions Group, Inc., Citynet Network Marketing and
Productions, Inc., Mont-Aire Realty and Development Corp., Philippine Entertainment Portal,
Inc., and RGMA Network, Inc.; Vice Chairman of Malayan Savings and Mortgage Bank;
Director of, among other companies, Gozon Development Corp., Justitia Realty and
Management Corp., Antipolo Agri-Business and Land Development Corp., Capitalex Holdings,
Inc., BGE Holdings, Inc., Philippine Chamber of Commerce and Industry, Chamber of
Commerce of the Philippine Islands and President of Lex Realty, Inc. He serves as Chairman
of the Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc., Kapwa Ko Mahal Ko Foundation,
Inc., and The Potter and Clay Christian School Foundation, Inc.; Chairman and President of
Gozon Foundation; and Trustee of Bantayog ng mga Bayani Foundation. Gozon is also an
Advisory Board Member of the Asian Television Awards.

Atty. Gozon is a recipient of several awards for his achievement in law, media, public service,
and business, including the prestigious Chief Justice Special Award given by the Chief Justice
of the Philippines (1991), Presidential Award of Merit given by the Philippine Bar Association
(1990 & 1993), CEO of the Year given by Uno Magazine (2004), Master Entrepreneur —
Philippines (2004) by Ernst and Young, Outstanding Citizen of Malabon Award for Legal and
Business Management by the Kalipunan ng Samahan sa Malabon (KASAMA) (2005), People of
the Year by People Asia Magazine (2005), Outstanding Manilan Award in the field of Social
Responsibility and Broadcasting given by the City Government of Manila (2011), Quezon City
Gawad Parangal Most Outstanding Citizen for 2011 given by the City Government of Quezon

9



(2011), Tycoon of the Decade Award given by BizNews Asia (2011), Lifetime Achievement
Award given by the UP Alumni Association (2012), Certificate of Recognition given by the Civil
Aeronautics Board (2012), Personality of the Year for Broadcast Media given by SKAL
International Makati (2013), Outstanding Member-Achiever given by Phi Kappa Phi UP Chapter
(International Honor Society) (2013), Visionary Management CEQ Award given by BizNews
Asia (2013), Lifetime Achievement Award given by UP Preparatory High School Alumni (2014),
Entrepreneurship Excellence Award and Best Broadcast CEO Award given by BizNews Asia
(2014), The Rotary Golden Wheel Award for Corporate Media Management given by Rotary
International District 3780 and Quezon City Government (2014), and Global Leadership Award
for Excellence in Media Sector (first Filipino to win the award) given by The Leaders
International together with the American Leadership Development Association in Kuala Lumpuir,
Malaysia (2015). He is also listed among Biz News Asia’s Power 100 (2003 to 2010).

Atty. Gozon earned his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines (among
the first 10 of his class) and his Master of Laws degree from Yale University Law School. He
was admitted to the Bar in 1962, placing 13th in the Bar examinations.

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr., Filipino, 52 years old, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of
GMA Network, Inc. He has been a Director of the Company since 1999 and is currently the
Chairman of the Network's Executive Committee. Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is the
Chairman of the Board of GMA Network Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. and a Board
member and the Executive Committee Chairman of GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc. He
also serves as President and CEQO of GMA Holdings, Inc., RGMA Marketing and Productions,
Inc., Film Experts, Inc., and Dual Management and Investments, Inc. He is the President and a
Director of Group Management and Development, Inc.: President and Director of MediaMerge
Corp., Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc.; Director of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA
New Media, Inc., Alta Productions Group, Inc., Optima Digital, Inc., and Mont-Aire Realty and
Development Corp. He also serves as the President and a Trustee of GMA Kapuso Foundation,
Inc. and a Trustee of the Guronasyon Foundation, Inc. and the HERO Foundation.

Mr. Duavit holds a Bachelor's Degree in Philosophy from the University of the Philippines.

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez, Filipino, 52 years old, has been a Director of GMA Network, Inc.
since 2002. He is currently the President and CEO of Menarco Holdings and the Chief
Executive Officer of Alta Productions, Inc. He is a Director of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA New
Media, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., and GMA Worldwide, Inc., besides also being a member of the
Board of Directors of Malayan Savings and Mortgage Bank, and Unicapital Securities, Inc. He
is also a Director of Nuvoland Philippines, a real-estate development company. He is a Trustee
of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.

He was educated in Los Angeles, California where he obtained a Bachelor's Degree in
Business Administration from Loyola Marymount University. He also obtained a Master’s
Degree in Management from the Asian Institute of Management.

Felipe S. Yalong, Filipino, 59 years old, is the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of GMA Network, Inc. He is also the Head of the Corporate Services Group of the
Network. He has been a Director of the Network since 2002. Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he
also serves as Corporate Treasurer of GMA Holdings, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., and GMA Network
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Films, Inc.; Director of Unicapital, Inc., Majalco Finance and Investments, Inc., and GMA
Marketing and Productions, Inc.; Corporate Treasurer of RGMA Network, Inc., MediaMerge
Corp.; Executive Vice President of RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc.: and Corporate
Treasurer of the Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.

Yalong was named CFO of the Year by ING FINEX in 2013.

He obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration Major in Accounting from
the Philippine School of Business Administration and completed the Management Development
Program at the Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Dr. Jaime C. Laya, Filipino, 77 years old, has been an independent Director of GMA Network,
Inc. since 2007. He is the Chairman and President of Philippine Trust Company (Philtrust
Bank), Director of Ayala Land, Inc., Manila Water Company, Inc., and Philippine AXA Life
Insurance Company, Inc. He also serves as Chairman of Don Norberto Ty Foundation, Inc.
and Escuela Taller de Filipinas Foundation, Inc.: Trustee of St. Paul University - Quezon City,
Cultural Center of the Philippines, Metropolitan Museum of Manila, Yuchengco Museum,
Fundacién Santiago, Inc., Ayala Foundation, Inc., and other foundations. He writes a weekly
column for the Manila Bulietin.

He was Minister of Budget, 1975-1981; Minister of Education, Culture and Sports, 1984-86:
Chairman of the Monetary Board and Governor, Central Bank of the Philippines, 1981-1984;
Chairman, National Commission for Culture and the Arts, 1996-2001. He was faculty member
of the University of the Philippines, 1957-1978 and Dean of the College of Business
Administration, 1969-1974. In 1986, he founded J.C. Laya & Co., Ltd. (Certified Public
Accountants and Management Consultants) later the Philippine member firm of KPMG
International; he served as the firm's Chairman until his retirement in 2004.

He earned his BSBA, magna cum laude, University of the Philippines, 1957; M.S. in Industrial
Management, Georgia Institute of Technology, 1960; Ph.D. in Financial Management, Stanford
University, 1966. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban, Filipino, 79 years old, has been an Independent
Director of GMA Network, Inc. since 2007. In 1995, he was named a Justice of the Supreme
Court and in 2005, he was appointed Chief Justice of the Philippines — a position he held until
December 2006. At present, he is also an Independent Director of these listed firms: First
Philippine Holdings Corp., Metro Pacific Investments Corp., Manila Electric Company,
Robinsons Land Corp., GMA Holdings, Inc., Philippine Long Distance Telephone Co., Petron
Corporation, Bank of the Philippine Islands, Asian Terminals, and a regular Director of Jollibee
Foods Corporation. He is also a Senior Adviser of Metropolitan Bank, Chairman, Board of
Advisers of Metrobank Foundation, Adviser of Double Dragon Properties, Chairman of the
Board of the Foundation for Liberty and Prosperity, President of the Manila Cathedral Basilica
Foundation, Chairman Emeritus of Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, Inc., and Member,
Advisory Board of the World Bank (Philippines) and of the Asian Institute of Management
Corporate Governance Council. He also is a column writer of The Philippine Daily Inquirer.

Upon his retirement, he was unanimously conferred a Plague of Acclamation by the Associate
Justices of the Supreme Court as the “Renaissance Jurist of the 21st Century;” and an Award
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of Honor by the Philippine Bar Association. In recognition of his role as a jurist, lawyer, civic
leader, Catholic lay worker, business entrepreneur and youth leader, he had been the recipient
of over 250 other awards from various governments, civic clubs, consumer associations, bar
groups, religious movements and other non-government organizations, both local and
international.

He obtained his Associate in Arts, “With Highest Honors” and later his Bachelor of Laws, with
cum laude and “Most Outstanding Student” honors from the Far Eastern University. He placed
sixth among more than 4,200 candidates who took the 1960 Bar examinations. He is likewise
the recipient of several honorary doctoral degrees from various universities.

Anna Teresa G. Abrogar, Filipino, 44 years old, has been a Director of GMA Network, Inc.
since 2000. She graduated valedictorian from grade school and high school at Colegio San
Agustin.  She graduated cum laude, BS Management Engineering from Ateneo de Manila
University and obtained her Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines
where she graduated valedictorian, cum laude. She later obtained her Master of Laws from
Harvard University.

She is a junior partner in Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila and was an Associate
Professor in the University of the Philippines, College of Law where she taught taxation.

She is currently Programming Consultant to the Chairman/CEO of GMA Network, Inc. and the
President of GMA Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. She is a trustee of GMA Kapuso
Foundation.

Ronaldo P. Mastrili, Filipino, 50 years old, is the Senior Vice President of GMA Network, Inc.’s
Finance and ICT Departments. He obtained his Bachelor of Science in Business and
Economics degree, major in Accounting from De La Salle University. He attended the Master in
Business Administration Program from the same university and completed the Executive
Development Program of the Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public
Accountant with expertise in the fields of accounting, auditing, finance, taxation and general
management. He was formerly the Assistant Vice President of Controllership of ABS-CBN and
also served as its Group Internal Auditor before joining GMA Network in March 2001. He also
worked with SGV and Co. in the early part of his career. Mr. Mastrili concurrently holds key
positions in GMA Subsidiaries namely: Comptroller/Chief Accounting Officer of GMA Holdings,
Treasurer of Alta Productions, Director of Script2010 and GMA Kapuso Foundation, and
Comptroller of GMA Films, GMA Kapuso Foundation and GMA Worldwide.

Roberto O. Parel, Filipino, 60 years old, has been the Corporate Secretary of the GMA
Network, Inc. since 1993. He has been the Compliance Officer of the Company since 2012. He
is a Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila. His practice areas
include labor relations, natural resources and intellectual property. He is a Director of Time-Life
International Philippines, Berong Nickel Corporation, Ulugan Nickel Corporation, Ulugan
Resources Holdings, Inc., Nickeline Resources Holdings, Inc., TMM Management Inc. and
Assetlex Development Company, Inc.: Corporate Secretary of Alta Productions Group, Inc.,
Scenarios, Inc., Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc. and GMA Kapuso Foundation,
Inc.
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He graduated from the University of the Philippines with a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Philosophy and a Bachelor of Laws degree. He was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1981. Atty.
Parel further pursued legal studies through short programs at the Center of American and
International Law and the Southwestern Legal Foundation in Dallas, Texas. Later, he attended
a training program on Industrial Property Rights held by the Japan Institute of Invention and
Innovation and the Association for Overseas Technical Scholarship in Tokyo, Japan.

Significant Employees

Although the Company will continue to rely on the individual and collective contributions of their
executive officers, the Company is not dependent on the services of any particular employee.

Family Relationships

Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar is the daughter of Felipe L. Gozon. Felipe L. Gozon’s sister,
Carolina L. Gozon Jimenez, is the mother of Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, during the past five years and up to the date of this
Information Statement, there has been no occurrence of any of the following events which are
material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any director, person nominated to become
a director, executive officer, or control person of the Company:

e Any filing of an insolvency or bankruptcy petition by or against any business of which
such person was a general partner or executive officer, either at the time of the
insolvency or within two years prior to that time:

e Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or any
pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, of any such person, excluding traffic
violations and other minor offenses:

e Any final and executory order, judgment, or decree of any court of competent
jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, against any such person, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting involvement in any type of business,
securities, commodities, or banking activities; and

e Any final and executory judgment of any such person by a domestic or foreign court of
competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC, or comparable foreign body, or a
domestic or foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or self-regulatory organization,
for violation of a securities or commodities law.

Resignation of Directors

No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors since the
date of the initial organization of the Company because of a disagreement with the Company on
matters relating to the Company’s operations, policies and practices.

13



Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

On May 30, 2008, the Company engaged as its legal counsel Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion
& Lucila ("BGEPAL") where Atty. Felipe L. Gozon is a Senior Partner. Atty. Gozon is the
Chairman and one of the major stockholders of the Company. The Company and BGEPAL are
currently negotiating the fees in relation to the services provided, ensuring that the same is
done on an arm’s length basis.

On July 30, 2007, the Company issued PDRs relating to GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares.
The proceeds owing to the selling shareholders of GMA Network, Inc. (“Selling Shareholders”)
whose Common Shares formed the underlying shares of the PDRs in the Company’s Initial
Public Offering were initially held by the Company then remitted to these Selling Shareholders.
Please see Note 10 of the Company’s Financial Statements.

Other than the foregoing, the Company has had no material transactions during the past two
years, nor is any material transaction presently proposed between the Company and parties
that fall outside the definition of “related parties” under SFAS/IAS No. 24, but with whom the
registrants or its related parties have a relationship that enables the parties to negotiate terms
of material transactions that may not be availed from other, more clearly independent parties on
an arm’s length basis.

Item 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

The following sets forth the summary of the Company’s compensation to its executive officers:

Name and Position

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. President and Chief Executive Officer
Felipe S. Yalong Chief Financial Officer/ Chief Operating Officer
Ronaldo P. Mastrili Chief Accounting Officer/ Comptroller
Year Salaries Bonuses Other Total
(in (in Income (in
thousands)  thousands) thousands)
CEO and the highest
compensated officers named 2013 - - - -
above
2014 - - - -
2015 - - - -
2016 - - - -
(estimate)

Aggregate compensation paid -
to all officers and directors as 2013 - - -
a group unnamed
2014 - - - -
2015 - - - -
2016
(estimate)
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No director or officer receives or has received compensation for their services. The By-Laws of
the Company however, provides that each director is entitled to a reasonable per diem
allowance for attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors. The By-Laws further
provide that the Board may receive and allocate an amount of not more than 10% of the net
income before income tax of the corporation during the preceding year. Such compensation
shall be determined and apportioned among the directors in such manner as the Board may
deem proper, subject to the approval of the stockholders representing at least a majority of the
stockhoiders.

The Company has no other arrangement with regard to the remuneration of its existing
directors and officers aside from the compensation received as herein stated.

Employment Contracts, Termination of Employment, Change-in-control Arrangements

The directors and executive officers do not have any employment contracts, and are elected to
their respective positions on a yearly basis. The Company has no compensatory plans or
arrangements with respect to any executive officer that would result from the resignation,
retirement or any other termination of such executive officer’s employment.

Iltem 7. Independent Public Accountants

(a) SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. (“SGV & Co.”) has acted as the Company’s external
auditors since 2007. SGV & Co. is being recommended for re-election at the scheduled
Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on September 30, 2016.

(b) Representatives of SGV & Co. for the current year and for the most recently completed
fiscal year are expected to be present at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. They will
have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be
available to respond to appropriate questions.

The Company became publicly listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange on July 30,
2007. Pursuant to Rule 68 paragraph 3 (b) (iv), the Company has engaged Ms. Marydith
C. Miguel, partner of SGV & Co., to sign the Company’s 2015 audited financial
statements.

(c) Changes in and disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosure.

The Company has not had any disagreements on accounting and financial disclosures
with its current external auditors during the two most recent fiscal years or any
subsequent interim period.

(d) SGV & Co. professional fees billed for its year-end financial audit of the Company
covering the years 2015, 2014 and 2013 amounted to P75 thousand per year. These
included the fees related to financial audit and services for general tax compliance. No
other fees of any nature were paid.

(e) The Company’s Audit Committee was formed in 2008. The Audit Committee reviews the
fee arrangements with the external auditor and recommends the same to the Board of
Directors.
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The members of the Audit Committee are as follows:
Dr. Jaime C. Laya (Chairman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban
Felipe S. Yalong (Corporate Treasurer)

Item 8.Compensation Plans

No action shall be taken with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash
compensation may be paid or distributed.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

ltem 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

No action shall be taken with respect to the authorization or issuance of any securities
otherwise than for exchange for outstanding securities of the Company.
Iltem 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities
No action shall be taken with respect to the modification of any class of securities of the
Company, or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one class of securities of the
Company in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.
Item 11. Financial and Other Information
In connection with Item 11 hereof, the Company has incorporated by reference the following as
contained in the Management Report prepared in accordance with Rule 68 of the Securities
and Regulation Code:

a. Audited Financial Statements for December 31, 2014 and 2015;

b. Management’s Discussion and Analysis or plan of operation; and

c. Information on business overview, properties, legal proceedings, market price of

securities and dividends paid out, and corporate governance

Item 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

No action is to be taken with respect to the mergers, consolidations, acquisitions and similar
matters.
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Item 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

No action is to be taken with respect to the acquisition or disposition of any property.

Item 14. Restatement of Accounts

No action is to be taken with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital or surplus account

of the Company.

D. OTHER MATTERS

item 15. Action with Respect to Reports

a. Approval of the Annual Report of Management and the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ending December 31, 2015.

b. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on August 13,
2015. The salient matters are summarized as follows:

(1

(2)
3)
4)
®)

Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders’ Meeting held on May 30,
2015.

Report of the President

Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the Previous Year

Election of Directors, including the Independent Directors

Election of the External Auditor

¢.  Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the previous year

All'acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for the period
covering August 13, 2015 to September 30, 2016 adopted in the ordinary course
of business involving

> Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;

> Appointment of signatories;

> Approval of the minutes of the organizational meeting last August 13,
2016

> Approval of the record date and venue of the Annual Stockholders’

Meeting

Approval of the Financial Statements

\%

ltem 16. Matters Not Required to be Submitted

All actions or matters to be submitted in the meeting will require the vote of the security holders.
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Item 17. Amendment of Charter, Bylaws or Other Documents

No action is to be taken with respect to any amendment of the registrant's charter, by-laws or other
documents.

Item 18. Other Proposed Action
(a) Ratification of the Acts of the Board of Directors/Corporate Officers:

Q) Declaration on April 8, 2016 by the Company of cash distribution to the
PDR holders of P0.40 per PDR or the same dividend rate that will be paid by
GMA Network, Inc. to its common shareholders, undiminished by the PDR
holders’ proportionate share in the operating cost of GMA Holdings, Inc. The
foregoing cash distribution in the amount P0.40 per PDR shall be distributed to
PDR Holders as of April 25, 2016 and will be paid out to the PDR holders on May
17, 2016

(ii) Declaration of Cash Dividends of P0.27 per share by GMA Network Inc.
on April 2, 2014 to PDR Holders. The record date for the PDR holders who were
entitled to receive the cash amounts was on April 24, 2014 (Thursday) [the same
record date for GMA Network, Inc. stockholders] and the cash amounts were
distributed to the PDR holders on May 20, 2014 (Tuesday).

(iii) All acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for
the period covering August 13, 2015 to September 30, 2016 adopted in the
ordinary course of business involving

> Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;

> Appointment of signatories;

> Approval of the minutes of the organizational meeting last August 13,

2015

> Approval of the record date and venue of the Annual Stockholders’

Meeting
> Approval of the Financial Statements

(b) Election of the Members of the Board of Directors, including two independent
directors for the ensuing calendar year

(c) Election of the External Auditor

Item 19. Voting Procedures

(a) Vote Required: Motions, in general, require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares
of the Company’s common stock present and/or represented and entitled to vote. However,
under Philippine law, certain proposed actions may require the vote of at least two thirds
(2/3) of the outstanding capital stock of the Company. The manner of voting is non-
cumulative, except as to the election of directors.
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(b) Method: Straight and cumulative voting. In the election of directors, the five (5) nominees
garnering the highest number of votes shall be elected directors. The stockholder may vote
such number of shares for as many person as there are directors to be elected, or he may
cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to
be elected, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as
he shall see fit; provided, the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number
of shares owned by him multiplied by the number of directors to be elected.

If there are more than five nominees, voting shall be done by secret ballot. If there are only
five nominees, voting shall be done by a show of hands.

The Corporate Secretary or the Secretary of the meeting shall be responsible for validating
the votes if the voting is done by secret ballot. The Corporate Secretary or the Secretary of
the meeting shall likewise be responsible if the voting is done by a show of hands,

Other than the nominees’ election as directors, no director, executive officer, nominee or
associate of the nominees has any substantial interest, direct or indirect by security holdings or
otherwise in any way of the matters to be taken upon during the meeting. The Company has not
received any information that an officer, director or stockholder intends to oppose any action to
be taken at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

Upon written request of the stockholders, the Company undertakes to furnish said
stockholder with a copy of the SEC Form 17-A free of charge. Any written request for a
copy of the SEC Form 17-A shall be addressed to the following:

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

9/F GMA NETWORK CENTER
EDSA corner Timog Avenue
Diliman, Quezon City

Attention: Ronaldo P. Mastrili
Chief Accounting Officer

Copies of the Unaudited Interim Financial Statements (period ended June 30, 2016) will
be made available to each stockholder at least five (5) calendar days before the Annual
Meeting. Such report can be viewed at the GMA Network Inc.’s official website and hard
copies of the company’s ifs and management discussion may be available upon request
five (5) calendar days before the said meeting.
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SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the
information set forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the

City of Makation _SFP 0 0 2818 2016

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
By:
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ANA—TERESA M. GOZON ABROGAR
Corporate Secretary



MANAGEMENT’S REPORT

I Business

GMA Holdings, Inc., (the “Company” or “GHI") was incorporated on February 15, 2006. As a
holding Company, its primary purpose is to invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquire own, hold,
use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange, or otherwise dispose of real and
personal property, including, but not limited to stocks, bonds and debentures. The Company
has no subsidiaries.

The Philippine Deposit Receipts ("PDRs”) issued by the Company were listed with the
Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE”) on July 30, 2007.

GHI does not engage in any other business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the
PDRs relating to the GMA Network, Inc. common shares ("*Common Shares”) for as long as the
PDRs are outstanding. GHI has undertaken to perform the obligations under the PDRs and the
acquisition and holding of the Common Shares underlying the PDRs, which includes
maintaining the listing with the PSE, and maintaining its status as a Philippine person for as
long as Philippine law prohibits ownership of Common Shares by non-Philippine persons.

The registered office address of the Company is Unit 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City.

Transactions with/and or dependence on related parties:

Not applicable.

Employees

The Company had no full-time employees as of August 25, 2016 and does not anticipate in
hiring any employees within the next 12 months. No labor unions are present within the
Company.

I Properties

The Company does not own any real property. The Company does not lease any real property
and does not intend to acquire any within the next 12 months.

. Legal Proceedings

The Company is not, and has not been, a party to any legal proceeding.
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V. Market for Issuer's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Market Information

The Company first offered PDRs relating to GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares on July 30,
2007. These PDRs were listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange on the same date.

2015 Stock Prices (GMAP)

Period in 2015 Highest Lowest
Closing Closing

1Q 6.79 5.92

2Q . 6.50 5.95

3Q 6.61 5.95

4Q 7.40 6.10

The Company’s Philippine Deposit Receipts have been listed with the Philippine Stock
Exchange since 2007. The price information as of the close of the latest practicable trading
date, September 30, 2016, is P6.05 for GMAP (PDRs).

Holders

The total number of shareholders as of August 25, 2016 was seven. The number of shares
subscribed as of August 25, 2016 was 10,000 or P100,000.00. All the common shareholders of
are listed hereunder:

Name of Shareholder No. of Shares Subscribed Percentage of Ownership
Felipe L. Gozon 3,330 33.30
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. 3,330 33.30
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez 3,330 33.30
Artemio V. Panganiban 4 .04
Manuel P. Quiogue 4 .04
Jaime C. Laya 1 .01
Felipe S. Yalong 1 .01

Total 10,000 100.00

Dividend Information

Dividends shall be declared only from the surplus profits of the corporation and shall be payable
at such times and in such amounts as the Board of Directors shall determine, either in cash,
shares or property of the Company, or a combination of the three, as said Board of Directors
shall determine. The declaration of stock dividends, however, is subject to the approval of at
least two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock. No dividend which will impair the capital of the
Company shall be declared.
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Distribution of GMA Network, Inc. Cash Dividends to the Company’s PDR Holders

On April 8, 20186, the Company approved a cash distribution to the PDR holders of P0.40 per
PDR or the same dividend rate that will be paid by GMA Network, Inc. to its common
shareholders, undiminished by the PDR holders’ proportionate share in the operating cost of
GMA Holdings, Inc. The foregoing cash distribution in the amount P0.40 per PDR shall be
distributed to PDR Holders as of April 25, 2016 and will be paid out to the PDR holders on May
17, 2016.

On August 25, 2015, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.25 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P211.75 million to all shareholders of
record as at April 24, 2015. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 19, 2015.

On April 2, 2014, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.27 per share,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P231.53 million to all shareholders of record
as at April 24, 2014. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 20, 2014.

On April 24, 2013, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.25 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, to all stockholders of record as of April 17,
2013. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 15, 2013.

Cash Dividends to Common Shareholders

On April 8, 2016, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of Php 600
thousand dividends from the retained earnings of the corporation as of December 31, 2015 and
will be paid out to the Company’s common stockholders on May 17, 2016.

On August 25, 2015, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of Php 500
thousand from the retained earnings of the corporation as of December 31, 2015. This was paid
out to the Company’s common stockholders on October 21, 2015.

The company has no dividend declaration in 2014 and 2013.

The Company has not and will not engage in any other business or purpose except in relation
to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying Common Shares for as long as the PDRs
are outstanding.

Any cash dividends distributed in respect of Common Shares underlying the PDRs received by
the Company shall be applied towards its operating expenses then due for the preceding and
current year. A further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year shall be
set aside to meet operating or other expenses for the succeeding year. Amounts remaining in
excess of such requirements shall be distributed pro rata amongst the outstanding PDRs.

Whenever the Company shall receive or become entitled to receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
any distribution in respect of the Common Shares which consists of a free distribution of
Common Shares, the Company shall grant additional PDRs to holders in respect of such
distributions.



Whenever the Company shall receive or become entitled to receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
any distribution in securities (other than Common Shares) or in other property (other than cash)
in respect of the Common Shares subject to the PDRs, the Company shall forthwith procure
delivery of such securities or other property pro rata to PDR holders or otherwise to the order of
the PDR holder, subject to compliance with applicable laws and regulations in the Philippines.

There are no restrictions on the Company’s ability to pay dividends on common equity.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities

No sale of unregistered or exempt securities of the Company has occurred within the past three
years.

V. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements of the
Company that are incorporated into this Information Statement by reference. Such Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine GAAP.

As discussed in the previous section, the Company has not and will not engage in any other
business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying
GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares for as long as the PDRs are outstanding.

Any cash dividends or other cash distributions distributed in respect of Common Shares
received by the Company (or the Pledge Trustee on its behalf) shall be applied toward the
operating expenses then due (including but not limited to applicable taxes, fees and
maintenance costs charged by the Philippine Stock Exchange) of the Company (the “Operating
Expenses”) for the current and preceding year (as certified by an independent auditor). A
further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year (as certified by an
independent auditor) (the “Operating Fund”) shall be set aside to meet operating or other
expenses for the succeeding year. Any amount in excess of the aggregate of the Operating
Expenses paid and the Operating Fund for such period (as certified by the independent auditor
of the PDR Issuer) shall be distributed to Holders pro rata on the first Business Day after such
cash dividends are received by the Company.

On August 25, 2015, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.25 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P211.75 million to all shareholders of
record as at April 24, 2015. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 19, 2015.

On April 2, 2014, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.27 per share,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P231.53 million to all shareholders of record
as at April 24, 2014. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 20, 2014.

On April 24, 2013, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.25 per

share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, to all stockholders of record as of April 17,
2013. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 15, 2013.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Company’s key performance indicators are focused on the dividends it receives to meet
PDR holders’ expectations and monitor cash and cash equivalents levels to meet its obligations
with respect to the Company’s current and preceding year’s operation.

Results of Operations of GMA Holdings Inc. for the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2014

GMA Holdings Inc. ended the year with a pre-tax income of P1.05 million, an increase of P443
thousand from last year's pre-tax income of P807 thousand mainly due to higher revenues
despite higher operating expenses. Likewise, net income after tax amounted to P635 thousand
versus P350 thousand net income after tax in 2014. This year's revenues reached P2.14
million, an improvement of 30% or P490 thousand from last year's level of P1.65 million mainly
brought about by the climb in interest income of P2.05 million. For 2015, a total of P2.00 million
PDR shares were converted to common shares which generated exercise fees of P89 thousand
vis-a-vis P9.16 million PDR shares in 2014, for an exercise fee of P409 thousand.

Operating expenses inched up by 5% to P1.09 million from P1.05 million in 2014 due to higher
professional fees partly negated by lower PSE listing fees and miscellaneous expenses.
Professional fees settled at P400 thousand, 95% more than the P205 thousand posted a year
ago which included payment to BGE for the amendment of Articles of Incorporation (to
incorporate complete address). On the other hand, listing fees of P576 thousand dropped by
17% from P690 thousand in 2014 as an offshoot of lower market cap.

On April 8, 2016, the Board of Directors approved the Company’s cash dividend declaration of
P600 thousand to its common stockholders from the retained earnings of the Company as of
December 31, 2015.

Financial Condition. Total assets amounted to P48.52 million, a tad lower from last year's

P48.91 million primarily due to the decrease in the fair market value of Available-for-sale
investment (under non-current asset).

KEY VARIABLE AND OTHER QUALITATIVE OR QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

i Trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a material
impact on the issuer’s liquidity.

As of December 31, 2015, there were no known trends, demands, commitments,
events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on the issuer’s liquidity.

i, Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration or an obligation.

As of December 31, 2015, there were no events which may trigger a direct or
contingent financial obligation that is material to the Company.
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iii.

vi.

vil.

viii.

Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

There were no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

Material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such
commitments and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

For 2015, there were no material commitments for capital expenditures.

Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net
sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

The Company’s results of operations depend largely on its ability to meet PDR
holders’ expectations from the dividends it receives and to monitor cash and cash
equivalents levels to meet its obligations with respect to the Company’s current and
preceding year’'s operation. There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that
are reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net
sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s
continuing operations.

As of December 31, 2015, there were no significant elements of income or loss that
did not arise from the issuer’s continuing operations.

Causes for Material Changes in the Financial Statements

Balance Sheet (December 31, 2015 vs. December 31, 2014)

e Cash and cash equivalent increased by P181 thousand to P26.85 million as a
result of interest added to the principal amount of renewed cash placement with
Unicapital, Inc.

s Current liabilities likewise increased by P125 thousand to P366 thousand, due to
unpaid liabilities for professional and audit fees.

Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or resuits of
operations.

There are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition
or results of operations.



INTERIM PERIODS

Copies of the latest unaudited Interim Financial Statements will be made available to
each stockholder at least five (5) calendar days before the Annual Meeting. Such report
can be viewed at the GMA Network Inc.’s official website and hard copies of the
company’s ifs and management discussion may be available upon request five (5)
calendar days before the said meeting.

VI. Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors has established a set of policies and initiatives to ensure that GMA
Holding's business practices are compliant with the best practices in corporate governance. The
Company has adopted a Revised Manual on Corporate Governance to institutionalize the
Company’s adherence to these principles. This Revised Manual clearly sets out the principles
of good management and defines the specific responsibilities of the Board, the Board
Committees, and management within the over-all governance framework.

The Revised Manual sets out the principles of good management and defines the specific
responsibilities of the Board, the Board Committees, and Management within the over-all
governance framework.

The Revised Manual conforms to the requirements of the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission and covers policies, among others:

(a) independent directors, (b) key board committees (e.g. Executive Committee, Nomination
Committee, Audit Committee, Compensation and Remuneration Committee); (c) independent
auditors, (d) internal audit, (e) disclosure system of company's governance policies, (f)
stockholder rights, (g) monitoring and assessment, and (h) penalties for non-compliance.

On November 6, 2012, the Board designated a Compliance Officer, Atty. Roberto O. Parel, who
at the same time holds the designation of Vice-President. The Compliance Officer is
responsible for monitoring compliance by the Company with the provisions and requirements of
good corporate governance.

Based on the Revised Manual on Corporate Governance dated July 31, 2014 as well as the
Company’s Annual Corporate Governance Report for 2015 which are adopted herein as filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission, there has been no deviations from the
Company’s Manual as of date.

VIl. Financial Statements
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GMA HOLDINGS, ING.

Unit 5-0 Tower One, One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifa

 April8,2016

STATEME‘NTS OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Securities and Exchange Commission
SEC Building, EDSA Greenhills
Mandaiuyong, Metrc Manila

The management of GMA Holdings, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation.of the.
financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, including’ the vadditional
components attached therein, in accordance -with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. ‘This .
responsibility includes designing and implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair”
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due tefraudor
error, selecting and appiying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are.
reasonabie in the circumstances. -

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements and submits. the 's'a_‘me‘;tc‘ the . -
stockholders. -

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the b’oard of directors, ‘have__
examined the financial statements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards onAuditing, .
and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairess of presentation "u‘pon‘ ’

compilstion of such examination.

Tt

Chairman of the Board

SU?SCRIBED AND SWORN to before me&gw %}/%Q‘L%fﬁ, 2016 at Makati City, aﬁé‘am
exhibiting to me their competent evidence of identities as follows: ' /

Name. Valid ID : issued on’ s 5t Wik

Felipe L. Gozon Passport No, EB7372600 Feb. 13,204 3/BFRMEHEHC
Gilberte R. Duavit Passport No. EC1839631 - Aub. 8, 2014/DFA MERIEY

Felipe S. Yalong : Passport No. EB7528245 * Mareh 1, 2;91‘:3/9;::*@2%%% LfirER s
. - R o hs |4 YL L

Doc. No.. _zk;{

Page No. . 2

Bbgk No  B33-35-05- JAN O 3035 & e
‘s of EYECUTIVEBIDG, CENTER  ~

Series of 2016. AAKATI AVE. GOR, SURTER -

GMA HOLDINGS, INC. -
g City 1634 Philippines

e mm s A A Rl Pamtar EMSA For Timoo Ave., Diliman, Quez 03 Phiiipp}ﬂ
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Form Type Deparment requiring the repor Seccﬂdar*," tivense Type, if Applicahie
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AlA F{S S - Not Applcable
R COMPBANY INFORMATION ]
Company's Emall Address Company’s Telephione Number ‘ "Mohils Numbsr
e - - | 9827777 } - |
No. of Stockhoiders Arnuat Mesting (Month / Day) Fiscal Year (Month { Day)
- ‘
7 | 8/13 ! 12/31
£ CONTACT PERSON INFORMATION |
The designated contact parson MUST ba an Officer of the Corporation -
Name of Contact Pergon Emall Addrese Telzphone Numbaris Mabile Number
f : e !
% Mr. Ronalde B. Mastrili rpmastrili@gmanetwork.com I! Q827777 I é - |
§ - , CONTACT PERSON's ADDRESS l
GMA Network Center, Timog Avenue corner EDSA, Quezon City x’
NOTE 1 in case of deals, resignation or cessalion of office of the officer designafed as contacl petson, such incident shall be fepinec’ i the
¢ ! daleils of condac! person

Commission wiinin thirly (30) cglender days fom the occurrence thereof with Informefion and compiele conlact deiails of the new
desfynatac.
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the Commission amior nomrecelpt of Notfics of Deficiensiss.  Fudher, non-recelst of Notice of Deficlenciss shall ntl exouse the comporetion from
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Unit 50 Tower One, One
MAILING ADDRESS: GIMA Natwork Cifem@f, EE}SA co mag; Ava,, Dlliman, Qu

nx\. ru\m LT

I, FELIPE S. YALONG, of legal age, Filipino and with office address, az G Complex,
EDSA corner Timog, Dmman Quezon City, after being sworn in aceord V\d{i‘ law,
hereby certify that:

1. T am the Treasurer of GMA Hoiémg& Inc, & corporation duly organized and existing under
and by virtue of the laws of the Republic of the Philippines under SEC Certificate of
regisiration CS200602356 With the principal office at Unit 5D Tower One, One Mckinley
Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City. |

The General Form for Financial Statements (“GFFS”) diskette submitted contains the

”
Z.

same basic and material data in the Audited Financial Statements of the Corporation.
3. I am executing this certification to attest to the truth of the foregoing and in compliance

with the reportorial requirements of the SEC.

: APR 43 708 R
) ~ VTR EEL N o ;
Witness my hand on this day of at City of &L"M““ u&%

Acknowledgemen

SUBSCRIBED AND 8WORN to before me this
me his TIN 102-874-052 (Felipe S. Yalong). )

Doc. Ne ?;j@

Page No, P
Book No. _E %E
Series of 201

MCLE & ", n Q{} /J{ﬂ'*; 2-10-14
potaris N Rdm, Matter Mg,

GMA HOLDINGS, INC. D16) RTC Cut
McKinley Place, New Bz}mfacéo Giobal City, Fort Bonira



Control Ne.: CS700602355
LY
Form Typa: _ GFFS frev 2008)

(BENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NAME OF CORPORATION: OMA HOLDINGS, INC.

CURRENT ADDRESS: 30 Towef‘One, One McKintey Place, New Bonifacio Giebat City, Taguig City
TEL NOL: 882-7777 low 8001/8888 FAXNC.:

COMPANY TYPE; Holding Company PSIC:

¥ these arg fweed. on consvliteted fnancial statements, plsase so indicate is the caption.

Table1, Balance Shest
: 2015 137

FINANCIAL DATA | {tn Pititjeping Pesof

A ASSETS A +AZFAIHAL+ASHABPAT+AS+ AL+ A0} 48218578 | 48,011,824

Al Curenfhssels (A 11+ A2 +A 13 +A14+A15) 27413.066 27,152,608

A2 Cagh and-cash equivalents AL 1.1 +A11.2+A1,1.3 26,845,541 26,665,221

A,1.1.5 On hand 5008 5,000

A.1.1.2 in domestie banksfeniities 26,841 541 26,660,221

A1.1.3 30 foreign barks’entifies

A.1.Z Trade and Other Recsivables (A1.2.1 +A.1,2.2) 168,515 183387

A2 Due from domestic entlfies (A.1.2.1.1 +A 1.2, 1.2 +A 1213+ A.1.2.14) 188,515 183,387

A.1.2.1.4 Due from cusiomers (frads} 24,430 39,980

A,1.2.1.2 Dus from related partiss

A12.1.3 Others, spenlfy {A1.2.1.3,144.1.2.1.38 175,085 143,407
£.1.2.1,3:1 Intarest Recelvable 175,085 143407

A4.2.132 Olhers

A1.2.1.4 Aliowance for doubtfud sccounts {negative sutry}
4.12.2 Dus from foreign enfilles, spaciy .
B1321 41322 +A1323+4,1.3.24)

A1221

At22z2

Ad223

A1.2.24 Allowancs for doubtfl accounts {negative entry}

A1.3 Inverories (131 +AL32+A133 +A1.34 54135 +A 1.3.6)

4.1,3.1 Raw materials and supplles

£.4.3.2 Gopds In process (including unfinlshed goods, growing crops, unfinishad

A.1.3.3 Finished goods

£.4.3.8 WarchandizefGoods in fransit

5,1.3.5 Unblliad Services (in case of service providers)

A,1.3.5 Others, specify {A.1.3.6.1+8.1.36.2)

A.5.38.1

A138.2

A4 4 Finanets Assels ofher inen CashiRecaivablesiBquity nvestmants (A.1.4.1+A14.2+
A4S+ A144A 145N 148

A14.1 Financial Assets at Fair Vaius through Profitor Loss ~lssued by domeasfic
orfities (A14 1.1+ A1A12 +A 1413 +A 1414 +A1415)

AY411  Matione! Govemment

Ad4 12 Public Fnanglal instiutions

A14.13  Puhlic Non-Fingnelal insfiutions

Al4.4  Prvate Fingnca! Instifutions : :

A1.4.15  Privets Non-Finangsl insttiutions

4.1.42 Held to Maturlty Investments - Issued by domestic enfiies
(81424 «A1402+A 1423 +A1424+A74.25)

A1423  National Governmen!

£.1.4.22  Public Financla! Instiutions

£1.423  Public Non-Fingncial Instiiutions

A14.24 Private Finandsl Institifions

A1A28 Priyets Not-Fhanciel Instivtions

. Whnteea'n and

NOTE:

This genets! form is upplicab® o companias engaged i horicuinye, Fishary, Foresty, Minlng, and Qusmying, tarufactsrng, Biectrinty, ‘Gas 2nd Vder, O
Retall Trade, Transpoctation, Stornge and Cammuningfians, Hotels and Restavrarts, Renal Estate, Conmunity, Socis! and Persons! Gervices, of harrfum': of r"
aperafane This form i lea applisable o other companips fhet oo net have industry-soesific Special Forme. Spsciatforme shall be ussd by puth 3
onbank Sranciol intermadiation scitviles, cracit grening, and aciiias awdiar 1o firanct Intasrdiabon, whinh require samnr‘rsn' licenss from SEC,

vj under Phifiprées taws or pranchesisidelfartes of forsigt corp rasang st aen lieonsed to 9o bas
Philapines. On the olier hand, foreigs orporgtions 218 fiose gt gre Mmeosparged gWroed, ‘r"‘li.’ﬂ"‘" it

Domeslic corprrpfons sre Move wWiich are B
tha genter bt saennmis inforest or aethity Is within fie

corporations epamatng abroad.
or auxikpey financist zorvices. Non-Finprstat inshinfiors refer e
:

Binancial stiubons s corporafions priveipaky engaged in Sranciat tnpreadiafion, faciiafing frpneis! 4

cornpratinng thal sry prmarily angaged in fbe preguction of market gooce and nor-fnansist gandees.



‘GENERAL FORN FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Control No.: £§2006

02358

Form Tyes:. GFFE {rev 2006
AR s/

NAME OF CORPDRATIOR: GMA BOLDINGS, INC.
CURRENT ADDRESS; 50 Towar One, One MeKinisy P!ace ﬂnw Bonnecm Gronal Clty, Taauis Clty
TEL.HO.: 9827777 inc 80016880 FAXH
COMPANY TYPE ¢ Holding Company s
If these are based on consolidated financlaf stefements, plezse sp Indicete i fhe captior.
Tabls 1, Balance Shaet
" : 2015 i 2014
FINANCIAL DATA {15 Piippine Pasof
A14.3 Loans and Recaivables - issued by domestic entities: - -
BA43 1 +4 3437381433 +A 148448 14RK
AL431_ Naetonsl Govarment
Ad432  Public Financlal Instiutions
A1432  Public Non-Finencial Insthutions
A1434  Privaie Financlal insfufions
A1435  Privaie Non-Flnancist Ingbutiorss
A4 Avaiiable-for-sale financlal assets - tesied by domestic enfitles; 20,805,523 21758216
AILAT+ATA42 2 A1443 A 14444818458
Alsal  Naliona! Govemment
A 442 Public Finanshl lngtitiions
AY44.3  Publ Non.Fingnolal insfifidions,
AldAd__ Private Financial nstitutions 20.805,523 21768.216 |
A14.48  Private Non-Finsnda! insifufions
A14.3 Financlg! Asgets lssuad by forelan enfitey (A4 48544145245 14 5 338,14 54 T
AlASY Financial Assels af feir valug hrouah profit of joss
54452 Held:io-matunity investmants
AL4ES  Loans and Raceivebies
414848 Avafable-for-sgls financial assety
&.1.48 Allow, gline i alue (neaalive anfry!
15 Dther Curren Assets {state Separately material iems) (A 15,1 + Al B0 < A5 366994 0000
5151 Prepald Tax Asssl 1127
A182 Innut Vet 366, 999 302873

A1B3

A2 Property, plant, and sauipment (A2 4 +422 +A23+A24+A25 s ADG A0 THA 28

A21 Land . »
A2.7 Buliding snd improvenents including leasehold improvement

A3 Machinery ane equipment fon hand and n fransity

424 Transportation/motor vahidias, sutomative eatfoment, sutes and trucks, and delivery equipment

5.2.5 Qthers, specliy [A.2.5.1 +£2.52 +A253 +A254+A25 5

£.2.54 Propery, or equipment used for sducstion nirooses

A2.5.2 Constnnhon in orogress
A253
A25L i
AZEE
A.2.6 Appraiial incresse, specly (A.28.1 +A 28,2 +A 283 +A.20.4}
A281
A282
A283
A284
7_ALH Denreciet
A28 impama 53 O Reverse i i i
in 1ar1ts 8 ry ) auitvme na&’fA 1+A3224A33) - B
A Equivin dam,sﬁgaugm;m&mﬂm
3l

A2 Eoadty i forelon brangh

Ad3 Ojﬁe_rs,,amciwm'mHAS’?“A”H&MQ‘
A3.3.1

AS3

A3.3.2

A334

A4 Investment Foneny

A5 Biolaizal Agsels

L A8 LI HARLIAS 1A

B "f,ggﬁ‘*iﬁggggjgixﬁ 1ABZ
A5 Maior fernds, spscify (A8 3.

A8

4812
ABLS

CABIA

i A82 Qfters. spediy (AS82 1 +AB22 ~AB23 v ABIA
AB2Y

AB.L2
AB.23

AB24

Msawmm&h

2 Hald for Sale

| Groups Classiied &




Contro No.: CS200802356
Form Typs: BEES frev 2005)

GENBRAL FORY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NAME OF CORPORATION: CMA HOLDINGS, INC.

CURRENT ADDRESS: 50 Tower One, One Meflinley Place. New B jo Global Clty, Taguly
TEL.NQ:  8B27777 log BOO1/4R8D rA;gQ enfecle At Te e
COMPANY TYBE: Hoiding Company it

¥ these are based cu consolftiated financial statements, pleass so indicate in e caption.
Table 1. Balance Sheet
i FARE] ] PAEE

for N ] -r' !
FINANCIAL DATA fin Phlizghos Paso)
 Jacelvahies_(net of cursnt portiont (A.5.1 + A2 + AG.A ; = -

A.8.1. Erom domesic enfifios, gnecify (811 449,12 %A 3.1.3+A0.1.4)
A8
A312
ABLI |
£014 |
A8.2 From forsian enfifies spe olfy (A8.2.1 #4830 +A823 A 824)
4821
A822
ASZ2
. AS24
ARS3 Al cé ford owolti t of current artion ineqatlve antry) :
A5 Oiner Aeseis IA10.1 = A, wumasmmww& — 2.
.._,&ﬁ,__aim‘z&gmm,mmmzaﬂg

figome Tax
wdvangeMistelane:
MM Qihers. Speciiv (A, v041+&z04f+ﬁ\jﬁ“+;§1044) - -

81044
A.10.5 Allowance for write-down of defered charastiad ageounts {neqafive ontos
B, LABLTES (RA+B2+ B3+ B4+B5 , A7.638,048 47.740.559
chwmudﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬂ%+Fs2+816*834%815v:15*8*? : 47,635,648 47,740.550
. Bavahl stin Enlites 47,835,380 A7 515794
B.?? 1 Loansiotes gxamet :
B1.12 Trade Pavable ) 8831 9.240
B.4.1.3 Pavables to Related Parties, speciiy {B.11.31 +B1.0.32 +B ALY 47,271,800 47,271,860
B.1.4.3.1 Dugfp share*m!dem : 17,271,608 47,.271500
51432
81133
B.14.4 Others, speciy B.1141+B 1142 +B.1143) 364879 231984
B.1.1.4.1 Deferred outout VAT 26181 4.284
B.1.1.4.2 Accrued Expenses 352,951 227870
B.1143
R 1.2 Trade and Oter Payables to Forelon Entliiss fspecify) (B.1.2.148.1.2.2¢B.1.2.3+8.1.2 4}
B1.2.1
B1.22
8.1.23
B1.24
B 43 Roplsinns .
B.+.4 Financial Lisbitifies {axcluding Trads and Cther Pavables and Provisions)
(B4 1+B147 +B143
Bi4d
8142
D142 ,
B 144
b1 | jbiliies for Cirent Tax ] 268 T
ol Tax § labiifias — : i
B.4.7 Ofhers, specify [ matertal, stats separately; indicate f the flem Is payable o publiclprivate 2418 -
ar fnanciatinon. fnancial institufions! .
B.1.7.1 Dividends dectared and not paid at balance shestdale 2418
B1.7,2 Accepiznces Pavable
8.1.7.3 Lisbitlies undsr Trust Receipte

? 4 Sertion of Long-ferm Dabl Dus within ons vear
5 Deferred income e - -
il Any pther currertt iablity i excess of 5% of Totsl Current Lintiifes, speciy:
B1761+B4782+B1783+RI2E64

21784

51762

B1.7.83 ] 1

BA76L !

B
Bi7.
BL7

3




GENERAL FORM FOR FIRANCIAL STATEMENTS
HANE OF CORPORATION: GHA HOLDINGS, INC.

- Gontrol Noo C5200602356

Form Type:  GFFS (rey 2006)

CURRENT ABDRESS: 50 Tower Ons, One MeK(nley Place New Bopfiacio Global Clty. Taguig Chy
FAX

sH

TEL. HO:  D82-T777 loc BODIBEES

COMPANY TYEE™ Holding Comparny

#thase ere bassd on consofidated fingncial statements, please 50 indicale in the captarn,
‘ Tebls 1. Balance Sheet

PSIC:

FINANCIAL DATA

T
{ia Phillgpine Pesq)

wUia

8.2 Long-lerm Debt - Non-curenf hnlerest-bearing Liabies (B.2.1 +B.2.2 +B.23 #B.24 +8.25)

8,21 Domestic Fublic Financial ingfitufions

2.2 Domestic Public Non-Finencia! Insiitufions

B2.3 Domestc Private Financial nsfitutions

B.2.4 Dornestic Private Non-Finencial institufions

B.2.5 Forelgn Financlat instiiutions

B3 Indebtedness to Affiiates and Relaled Parties (Non-Current)

B4 Liabfiitles Inciudad in the Disposa! Groups Classifiad as Held for Sale

85 Other Liabiffies (851 +B52)

851 Deferred Income Tax -

852 Others, speciy (B52.1 +B5.2.2 +BE.2.3+B.527)

B&21

BS.2.z2

B&23

85,24

C BQUITY (C.3+C4+ 05+ 08 +0.7+ 0.8+ 5840100

§80530

171,280

C.1 Auihvorized Capltal Stock (ho. of sheres, par value and tolat value; show detals)
ORI SR R

100,000

106,000

C.1.1 Common shares 110,800 shares par value of P1C

100,000

106,000

.12 Profered Shares

C.1.3-Othars

(.2 Subscrived Caplal Slock (0. of shares, par vahe and folal valug) (G211 +C 22 +C.2.3)

109,000

100,000

.24 Commonshares 110,000 sharss par valve ol P15

180,009

100,600

G.2.2 Prafereg Snares |

£.23 Cthers o

C.3 Pald-up Capital Stogk {C.3.1 + C.3.2)

106,000

100,800

£:3.1 Common shares 110,000 shares par velus of P10

100.008

100,000

C.3.2 Pratorred Shares

C.4 Additianal Paid-in Capltal / Caplfal in excess of per valug / Paid-n Suipius

{.6 tinarty Interest

875007

539814

0.6 Others, spegii {851 +C6.2+C83+C 64 +0,6.8)

C.5.1 Other comprehansive mcome

875,007

539,814

C.62.

~nn

0.

Cé4

C58
0.7 Appralse! Sumpius/Revaluation Incramen! in Propery/Revalualion Surplus

(194,670

C.8 Retained Eamings (C.8.1 +C8.2)

C.8.1 Appropiiated

{194 4?’71!

C.8.2 Unaporopriated
C.9 Head / Home Offioa Aooount tior Forsign Branches oniy}

i

.10 Cost of Stooks Held in Treasury {nagative sntry)
0. TOTAL LABILITIES 8ND EQUITY (B + ()

48718,578 ‘

48.911.824




EN

ENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATERENTS.

Control Ho,: G8200602356

Form Type:

GFFS frov 2005

NAME OF CORPORATION: GMa HOLDINGS, INC.
CURRENT ADDRESS: 5D Tower Ong, One MeKinioy Place, New Bonffaclo Global City, Taguly Sty
TEL, KO 8827777 ion BOO1/8888 FAX NG.:
COMPANYTYPE Holding Company BSIC:
if thess sre based on consolidated inancial statements, please so indicate in the capiion.
Table 2, Income Statement
FINANCIAL DATA 2015 | 24 | 2013
. . {In Phlipine Pese)
A REVEHUE JINCOME (A1 + A2 ¢ A3+AA) 2,941,960 1,651,858 1,205,493
A Het Saies or Revenus f Receipis from Operalions {manufacturing, mining,uliftties, trads, 83,103 408,143 .
senvices, sic.) (from Primary Activity)
A2 Share in the Profit or Less of Assoclates and Joint Ventures accountsd for using e - -
A3 Other Revenup (83,1 + A3 +A33+A34 +A35 - - -
A3.1 Rental fncome from Land and Bulldings
A3.2 Raceints from Sale of Merchandiss (trading) (from Sesondary Activity)
#.3,3 Salg of Reg] Esteto or oiher Pronerly and Eouipment
4.3.4 Rovalties, Franchise Fees, Copyrights (books? films, tecords, efc.)
A3B Others, speclly (351 + A352+A353+A354+A3E5 +
ALES+AZET :
A.3.5.1 Rentsl Income, Equiprment
A3E2 :
A353
Alb4
A355
A358
4357
A4 Otrer incoms (non-oparating) A4 +A42 + A4 +A LY 2,052,857 1,.242815 1,205,483
A1 inferest incoms 2052857 1,242815 1,205,493

A 4.2 Dividend Income

A.4.3 Gain/ {Loss} from sefiing of Assels, specily
(AA2I 54324433 +AARA+A4B5+A43E xR4T

A431

A4.3.2

A433

Ad34

A 4.4 Gainf{Loss! on Foreign Exchangs (A44.1+A442+AL3 + 2444

Add

Ad47

Abd3

Adgt

B COSY OF GOODS SOLD(BI+BZ+BY

B4 Cost of Govds Manyfactured (B1,1 +B1.2+ B3 +B 14 +B 15

B.1.1 Direct Materal Used

B,1.2 Direcl Labor

B.4.3 Other Manviaciuring Cost f Overhead

E.1.4 Goods in-Prosess, Beginring

R.1.5 Goods in Process, End {nsostive enlry)

B.2 Finished Goods, Beginrling

B.3 Finished Goods, End (negslive entry)

.

COST OF SALEE (0.1 +C.2¢C.3)

£.1 Purchases

.2 Merchandiss [nveniory, Beginning

£.3 Merchandise inventory, End (negafive entry]

GOET OF SERVIGES, SPECIFY (B.1+D.2+ B.B"i-{).é DB+ B
i




GENERAL FORM FUR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

Controf Ne.:

Form Type:

C8200802355

GFFS {rey 2008}

CURRENT ADDRESS: 5D Tower Ong, Ong McKiniey Placs, New Bonifacio Globsl Clty, Tagulg City

TEL, NG, 882-77T77 Inc BO01/8888 » FAXRO.

COMPANY TYRE Holding Company
I thess are based op consolidated financlal statements, plesse so indicats in the caption.

Tabis 2. income Statement

PSIC:

FINANCIAL DATA

2015

T

2013

E _OTHER DIRECT GOSTS, SPECIFY{EA +E2+ EZ+ E4+ E5+ E6)

(i Phitippiny Peso)

-
L.

E2

E3

Ed

=44

Eg

. GROSBPROFITA-B-C-B-E)

2,141,860 |

1,651,808

1,205,483

G. OPERATINGEXPENSES [0+ B2+ B3+ 5.4)

1,084,413

1,045,828

1.344 184

G.3 Sslling or Markefing Expenses :

(8.2 Administrotive Exnenses

1,084.413

1.045,026

1,344,184

G, Gensral Expences

3.4 Other Expenses, specify (G641 +84.2 +G.43+844+845 +348)

G4.1 Inferast Expense snd Bank Charges

842

3543

Ghd

G45

G48

FINANCE COSTS

{138,691

NET INCOME L.0SS) BEFORE TAX (F - G~ H

1,047 547

- B06,932

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (nagative entry) |

41z,3854)

{255,748}

(241,009)

INCOME ILOSSYAFTER TAX

835,183

380,188

{378,750

e g

Amouni of {) Post-Tax Profit or Loss of Discontinued Cperations; and (i}
Post<Tax Gain or Loss Recognized on theMeasurement of Fair Vaiug foss
Gost to 3l or on the Disposal of the Assets or Disposal Group(s)
congfituting the Discontinugd Operation (i any)

L

L2

N. Prefit or Loss Atfributable to Minority Interest

. Profit or Loss Atiributable fo Bquity Holders of the Parent




(GENERAL FORW FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Confrol Ne.; CS200807355
Formt Fype:  GFFS frov 2005)

NAME OF CORPORATION:  GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

CURRENT ADDRESS: 5D Towsr Ong, One MeKinley Placs, New Banlfacio Slobal Clty, Taguig City

TEL.RO.: 9827777 toe 001/8880 FAX NO:

COMPANYTYPE:  Holding Company PSIC:

if these are besed on consofidated financial statements, pjease so indicate in the caplion. T

" Table 3. Cash Flow Statemants )
FINANCIAL DATA 2015 208 | 20m
fin Prilippine Pega}

CASE FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES ’
Net Income (Loss) Batars Tax and Extraordinary tems 1,047,567 506,932 {138,581}
Adjustmsnis o Reconcile Net Income to Nat Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Uepreciation
kmortization, specify: [
Olhars, specify Inierest Income (2,062,857) {1,242 815} {1,2054%3)
Interest expense and pank charges - - -
Interest received 2,024,178 1,172,087 1,182,885
tnterest pald . a5
o incoms taxes paki {410,888] {256,745) pEoE
= ¥Aife down of Property, Plart, end Equiomert
Changes In Assets and Liabifities:
Decreass (Increese) in:
Receivables 15,550 40,850 142,730
Prapaid Tax {64,126) {68,512} (95 382}
Others, specify:
incresse (Decrease) in:
Accounts payable and acorued expenses 124,580 {488,384) 245,485
Vilthholding taxes payebie - - -
Others, specily.  Due fo shereioiders -
. WetT Cash Proviien by (used im) Operating Activities (sum of D0ve 10ws) Ra0E D 1264, 767} {131,565}
CASH FLOWS FROM TNVEBTRIG AGTIVITIES
fincreass) Decregse in Long-Term Receivables
{increase) Decrease In lovestmeni
Reduciions/{Additions) 1o Property, Plant, and Equipment
{thers, specify:
B Raf $ash Providen oy (Usad In; thvesting ACHATGE (5Um Of 2DOVE FowS}
CASH FLOVS FROM FINANCING AGTIVITIES
Proceads from:
Loans
Long-term Debl
issuance of Seoutifles . ~
Oiners, speciy: Payment of avaliabledorssle lvesiment (21,000,600} -
Payments of.
(Loans)
{Long-term Debf)
{Siock Supscriptions)
thers, speciy (negative entryl: _
° peci! Baymen of cash dividends {499 5353 - -
TRt Caah Brovided by (Used i) Financing AL ies (suT) of above rows) {49»?.593) (JE:UUU{}?}{) o 5%
ST TRCREAGE N CABH AND GASH EGUIVALENTS (A + B +C) BTA06 | 143,204 161 (131,555
Cash andVCa_s,h Eguivaienm . 26.885.221 47,679,986 48.054.553
Beginning of vesr TERRE ST B EEE2] 77 575,988
ETiG OF year !

iy,



Control No.: C8200602356

- Padvivtirioba S

Form Fyper  GFFS frev 2006)
e D

GENERAL FURW FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NAME OF CORPORATION: GRA HOLDINGS, INC.
CURRENT ANDRESS: 5D Towsr One, One MeKiniey Place. New Bonlfacio Giobal Glty, Tagulg Cmf
TEL, NCu 2777 local BUD1IERRS FAXNO.
COMPANY TYPE; Helding Company :
if thesa are based ou consolideted fnanclsl staternents, please so indicate in the captior,

Tabls 4. Statement of Chenges In Equity
’ i Falfippine Pase)

H

. 1Additionat Pald{ Reveiuation | Translation | Unromized Galn on AFS
FINANGIAL DAT : 2 5
A Gapits! Stock In Gapitel tncrement | DHferemces | investment - Net of Tax Retalnad Earnings TOTAL

A Balaties, 2013 100,000 182,628 289,628

A1 Correstion of Brrorfs)

A2 Cranass in Accounting Poliey
B, Restaiad Balancs
C. Sy

0.1 Surpws {Defictt) on Revatuation of
Properties
C.2 Surpius {Deffolt) on Revalusfion of .. | .4 Wt
Invasiments N ‘ oo
C.3 Gurr ranslation Differences
C.4 Qther Surplus (specify)
g; 1 Cihar comprehensive ncome. : 531451

u4 3
44
GAS

. 356185

0. Netincome fLose) for the Peried

IE. Dividends {nexative antry}

F._Appropristion for (spacify
Fi

£z
3 :
Fa [

EB
. lssuance of Caplial Stock (
G,1 Gommon Stock A
G.2 Preferced Stock i
3 Others .
H. bag;ce = 2014 100.000 531,451 538814 4171285

i H.i.Comacion of E r:*ror fs i
L ch nA Policy
lestated Balanoe

w, Sutnie
2.1 Surplus {Defigh) on Revahution of

Praperties

J.2 Surplus (Deficl) on Revatuation of
tnvesiments

] 3 Cytrency Tranm-w Differances

ne Suius fsoecll (F25.928) ; {726928)

)
i
(=]
o
LXX
XY

J.4.4 Other comarahensivg loss
442
142
J42
J45
K. Nat Ingome {Logs) for the Period
. Divitiends {negafive sptnv}
T4 ronration for clfyl
.2
b3
Mh
.5
. lssuance of Cavital Stock
N.1 Common Steck
N,2 Preferred Siock
N3 Others
0, Balance. 2015 406,000 ! (194,477}

835,183 835193
(500,080} -

575,087 540,550
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

The Steckholders and the Boara of f Dirsctors
GhA Holdings, Inc,

5D Tewsr One, One MceKinley Plsce

New Global Bonifacio City

Fort Bonifasio, Tagnig City

Report on the Financial Blatements

Wa have audited the accmnu&nvmg financizl statements of G’\ffA Pafdmm Ine., which comprise the
statements of financial position as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the statements of
cempre,hensive income, statements of changes in equity and statemenis of cash flows for each of the
three ysars in the period ended December 31, 20135, and » summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information,
Meanagement ‘s Responsibility for the Finanoial Stotemeiis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
aceordance with Philippine Financisl Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
menagement determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financiel statements that are free
from material misstaternent, whether dus to fraud or error,

Auditors ' Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to exprass an opinion oo these financial statements nasaé on our gudils. We
gonducted our audifs in accardance with Pmupmne Standards on Andittag, Thoss standards require

that we comply with ethicel requirements and plan and perform the audit to cbtain reasonable
asgurance about whether the ﬂnanc;ai siaternents are free from material misstaternent.

An andit involves performing procedurss 1o obtain sudit evidence about the emounts and disclosures
in the financia] statements. The procedures selectad éepand on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statersents, whefher due to fraud or
error, In making ihose risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
oreparation and f'mr presentation of the fnancial statemsnts in orderto design audit pmc“muras that are
sppropriate in the ciroumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an apmzon on the effecfiveness
of the sntin’s internal sontrol, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of preounting estimates made by management, a5 well as
svalnating the overel] presentation of the financial statements,

‘We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained ts sufficient and aporopriate to provids a basis for
our audit opinicn. e RN
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position

of GMA Heoldings, Inc. as at December 31, 2815 and 2014, and its financial performancs and cash
Tlows for each of the three years in the period endsd December 31, 2015 In accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on the Supplementary Information Requirad Under Revenue Regulstions 152010

Dur audits were eonducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whots. The supplementary information regquired under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 in
Note 17 to the financial statements is presented for purposas of fling with the Burean of Internal
Revenue and 1s'not a requirad part of the basic financizl gtatements. Such information is the
responsibility of the menagement of GMA Holdings, inc. The information has been aua;ectad to the
anditing procedures epplisd in our audit of the basic financil statements. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basgic financial statements taken

as & wholg,

SYCIP ‘JOR.RuS VELAYO & CG,

HMaweria H. Bpvdorer—

Mariecris N. Barbaso

Partner :
CPA Certificate No, 57101 | BURCAUTE A
SEC Accreditation Ne, 1513-A (Group A), | LangE 5L TAxe 2

TAJ{#&YE A R Ff
Oatober 6, 2013, valid unti] October 5, 2018 =y - J‘scmwdw ‘{{
!

Tax Identification No, 202-065-716 f
/ APR 14 oo f":,:yfg /

BIR Agoraditation No. 08-001958-108-20135,
March 4, 2015, valid uptil March 3, 2018 E H {}E -
v

PTR Ne. 5321611, January 4, 2016, Makati City W‘

April §, 2016



GMA BOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

¥

f

i

3 F‘ZWF T RUTIOTT T RETIPU5E ;
- FARM AND {ONTERTS

December 21

281 CIp14

ABSETE
Current Assefs
Cagh and cash equivalents. (Notes 6, 13 and 14) - P26,846,541 $26,665,221
Accounts receivable (Noetes 13 and 14) 199,815 183,387
Other currant assets 366,998 304,000

Total Current Assets 27,413,855 27,152,608
Nonewrrenl Asget
Available-for-sals investment (Notes 7, 13 and 14) 20,805,523 21758216

P4B218,576,  P4BDI1.824

LIABYLITIES AWND EQUITY

Cuorrent Liabilities
Aoccounts payable and other current lisbilities

{Noptes §, 15 and 14) B366,179 8241,194
Due to shareholders (Notes 12, 13 and 14) 4727100 47,271,600
Incoms tax payable ' 268

47,638,648 47,512,764

Totat Current Ligbilitias

Nopowrrent Linbility

Deferred income tax lighility (Note 113 - 227,765
Total Lisbilities 47,638,048 47,740,559
Equity (Note 5) '
Capiial siock 100,400 108,000
Roinined earnings §75,007 539,814
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale mvestment -
net of tex (Note 7) {184 477) 531,451
=84,530 71,263

Total Bgulty

4,1
P45,218 578 248 011,824

See geeompanying Notes ko Finanoto! Siatemants.
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- GMA BOLDINGS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2018 2014 2013

REVENUE
Interest income (Notes & and 7) B2 081,857 B 242 815 R],205493
Exercise fees (Note §) 52,103 400,143 -

2,141,960 1,651,958 1,205,453
OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 10) 1,004,413 1,045,026 1,344 184
INCOBIE (1088 BEFORE INCOME TAY 1,047,547 k 606,932 {138,691
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 11) 412,354 356,746 241,099

) NET INCOME {L{)Sﬁ} o 635,183 350,186 (379790

G"‘%R COMFPEEHENSIVE INCOME (LOSE)
ftems ro be recigssified 1o proy¥ or loss in
Subseguent periods -
Unrealized gsio {losg) on available-for-sals
mvestment ~ pet of tax (Note 7) {723,928) 5314 -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCGME (LOBS)  (290.735) 2881637 ®379,790)
235,02 (R37.38)

Basig/Diluted Enrnings (Loss) Per Share (Note 15 B62.52

Sez aecompanying Notes ro Finonctol Staemarss,

2
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GM4 HOLDINGS, INC,
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES INEQUITY

Unrentizad
Gain (Loss} on
Retatnsd Avialinixle-for-sale

Capitel Eprnings Investment - Net
Bipal (Note 9) {Note ) af Tox (Note 7) Toial Equity
Balancey ps ot Japunry I, 2015 E108,800 PE3D.E14 B531,451 Fi,171.285
HNet income - §35,193 - 635,193
Other gomprehensive loss - - {123,928) (725820
Total comprehensive income {loss) - 635,193 (725,228) {00,735
Cash dividends (Note 9) - £300,800} - (500,060;
Bnilznees ng ot Devember 31, 20153 100,800 Bp7S,007 {2194 477) BERO 530
Balances a5 at Janupry 1, 2014 ) F100.060 PI8Y 628 o B2H5,628
Net income . - 350,186 - 350,186
Other comprehensive income § el - 531,451 531451
Totsl comnprehensive dmdme - 330,186 5314538 881,637
Balances a5 at Decamtber 31, 2014 BIQO.80D £538.814 CR531,451 1,171,285
Balances ag at January 1, 2013 #100,000 BSRDAIE : B PREILIR
Totnl comprehensive lass - {375,790} - (379,790
Balances es et December 31, 2013 ° 2100,000 PIED.G28 Fmr £280,628

Seg aeconpanying Notes te Finoncial Statements,

NI B

BUREAL U REW
AEE  xRAYL L b D VES
LARGE m;?%‘aic’i‘;\-ggi ERvICE

- ; ;ANC&U&"S‘TON}'
#lag b
(AP | /’

/ 5 20§ TsIs
RECET \4

LORENAR,Y)

v .
et




GMaA BOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

-'Yeafs Ended December 31

2015 2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) befors incoms tax 21,047,547 BGDS,532 (R138,601)
Adjustment for interest incoma
{Notes 6 and ) (2,052,857} (1,242,855 {1,205.493)
QOperating loss before working capital changss {1,008,318; {635,883 (1,344,184}
Decrease (Inoreass) im:
Asccounts receivable 15,550 AD,650 142,730
Cther current assats (64,126) {96,512} (98,382)
Incresse (decrease) in aceounts payable and G .
other current Habilities ¥ 124,580 {488,364 246,485
Cash flows used in opsrations {928,306) {1,180,109) (1,653,351
Interest received 2,021,179 1,172,087 1,162,885
Tncome taxes paid (410,958) {256,745 (241,099}
Net cash provided by (used in) opsrating
activities 680,915 {264,767 {131,565)
CASBEFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY
" Purchass of available-for-sale investient (Note 7) - {(21,080.000) -
CASE FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Paymernt of cash dividends (Note 5) {499, 565) — -
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH FOUIVALENTE 181,328 (21,264,767 {131,585
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
T BEGINNING OF YEAR 26,655 221 47,929,988 48,061,553
CASH AND CABH EQUIVALENTS ;
ATEND OF YEAR (Huis §) B26,846,541 " BZ6,665,22] 847,920,088

See areompanying Notes io Financls! Statemenis.
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Corporate Information

GMA Holdingz, Inc. (the Company) is incorporated in the Philippines to invest in, purchase ar
vtherwise acquire and own, hold, use, soll, assign, transfer, morigage, pledge, sxchange or
otherwise dispose real and perscnal property of every kind and description, The registered office
address of the Company s 8D Towaer One, One MoKinley Place, New Global Bonifacio City, Fort

Bonifacio, Taguig City. The Company was registered with the Securities and Exchange

Commission (SEC) on Febroary 15, 2006,

The accounting and administrative functions of the Compeny are undertaken by (A Network,
Inc. (GMA), an affiliate.

In 2007, the Company igsned Philippine Deposit Recsipts (PDRs), which were listed.and fraded in
The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE) (see Note 53, .

The Company will not engage in any business or purpose other than in connection with the
issuancs of the PDRs, the performance of the obligations under the PDRs and the ecquisition and
holding of the underlying sharss of GMA, in respect of the PDRs issued, This includes
maintalning the Company’s listing with the PSE and meintaining ifs status as a Philippine person
for as long oy the Philippine law probibits ownership of GMA s sheres by non-FPhifippine person.

Mo reporiable ssgment information is presented as the Company's limited operations are
adequately pressnted in the statements of comprehensive ineome. :

The secompanying finsncial statements of the Company were approved and authorized for
issuznce in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Divectors (BOD) an April 8, 2016,

s\.}

Basis of Preparation and Changes in Accounting Policies and Diselosures

Basis of Preparation
The Company's financial statements have been prepared in acoordence with Philippine Finangial

Reporiing Standards (PEFRS),

The financial simtements of the Company have been prepered on 2 historical eost besis, except for
availabie-for-sals {AFS}'imﬁstmang which is measurad at fair valus, The financial statements are
presented in Philippine pesc, which is the Corapany’s functional and presentation cuvency. All
valuss are rounded o the nearest peso, except when otherwiss indicated,

Chanees in Accoumnc Poligies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of following amendmenis and improvements to PFRS and Philippine Accounting

Standards (PAS) which the Company sdopied during the year:

= PAS 19, Employee Bengfiis - Defined Bengfi mezs, Empioyee Cormy ¢hutions {Amemdmsms 3
= Annual Improvements to PFRS (20162012 cycle) ‘
= PERS I, Share-based Paymeni - Definition of yﬁs?mmm
«  PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Accounting fariG @aﬁﬁg F%E Q‘:’:?“&‘* ”%{V* @ngz&f
Combination CSISTANCE Bivigion |




“Hignfficant impact on iis financial statements,

-2

# PERS & Operaiing ?egﬁzenzo - dgeragation of Operating Segments and Reconctliation of
the Toial of the Reportabie Segment s Assats to the Entity's Assers
®  PASB 18, Property, Piant and Eguipment, snd PAS 38, intangibie Assets - Revaluation
Method - Froportionare Restatement of Accurmulated Amortization and Depreciation
*  PAS 24, Relored Party Disclosures - Key Managemant Persornel
*  Annual Improvements to PFRS (2011 - 2013 cycle)
*  FFRSE 3, Business Combinations ~ Seope Exceptions for Jam»‘ Arvangemenis
¢  PFRS 13, Foir Polue Measurement - Porgfolio Exception
= PAB 40, Investmenr Property - Anciliary Servivas

The adoption of these standards did not have any impact on the financial statements of the
Company,

Fu‘mre Chenges i Accounting Policies ,
& Company will adopt the following PFRS when these become effective. Except as otherwise -
¥ &

mdlgazﬂﬁ the Company does not expect the adoption of these nsw and amended PFRS to have &

+

Effective Jarmory 1, 2016

= PFRE 10, Consolidoted Financial Sictements, and PAS 28, Investments in Associgies and
Jaini Ventures - Investment Enfities: Aﬂplymg the Consolidation Exception (Amendments),
Thess emendments clarify that the exemption in PFRE 10 from presesting consalidated
finaneial statements applies to & parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity that -
measures all of is subsidiaries at fair value and that only & subsidiary of an investment entity
that is not &8 Investment entity itselfand that provides support services to fhe nvestment
entity parent is consolidated. The smendmenis also aliow an investor (that is not an
investment entity and has an investment entity gssociate or joint venture), when applying the
equity method, to rezin the fair value measurement applied by the investment entity associate
or joint venturs to its interests in subsidiaries,

=  PFRS i1, Joint Arrazzgemezzfs Aecounting for Aagzwifzoas of Inferests in Joint Operations
{Amenaments} The amsndments to PFRS 11 require 2 joint operaior avcounting for the
acquisition of an interest in & jolnt operation, in which the astivity of the joint operation
canstitutss & business (as definsd by PFRS 3), to apply the relevant PFRS 3 prineipiss for
business combinations acoounting The amendments elso clarify that & previously he
interest in & joint operaton is not remeasured on the soquisition of an additional fnterest in the
sarme joint operation witdle joint control is retained, In addition, scope sxclusion has been
added to PERS 11 to specify that the amendments do not apply when the pariies sharing joint
conirol, including the reporting entity, are under pomumon control of the sama witimate

controliing party.
The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest iu s joint operation and the

acquisition of any additional interests in the same joimt operation aud are prospectively
effective Tor anfiual periods beginning on or after Janoary 1, 2016, with sarly adoption

parmitted,

TR



PFRS 14, Regvlafmy Deferral Account. PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an Bﬁttt}f,
whaose activities are subjet ta rate-regulation, to continue applying most of fis existing
amoan‘crng pahcms for regulatory deferral account balances upon is first-fime adoption of
FRS. Entities that adopt PFRS 14 must present the mgulatory deferral accounts ag separate
lime item on the statement of financial position and present movements in these account
balances as sgparate line ftems in the statement of prc:-ﬁt or loss and other comprehensive
meome (OCI). The standard requirss disclosures on the nature of, and risks assaciated with,
the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects nfthat rate-regulstion on i#s financia! statements,

PAR I, Presentation gf Financial Sicternents - Disciosre Initigtive (Amendments), Ths
amendments. are intended to assist eatities in applying judgment when meeting the
presentation and disclosure requirements jn PFRS. Foliowing are the clarifications:

*  That entities shell notreducs the understandability of their financial statemants by either

obscuring material information with immazterial information; or ageregating material ftems
that have dzf*aren.‘,naturas or funetions; :
«  That specific line ifems in the statsment of income and OC and the statement of financial
position may be disaggregated; »
= That éntities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes to financial

‘statements; md
»  That the share of O] of assooistes and joint venturss accounted for using the equity

method must be prasented in aggregaie ag a singls {ine {tem, and classifiad between those
items that will or will not be gubsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Barly application is permiited and entities do not need to disclose that fact as the amendments
ars considsrad to be olarifications that do not affect an entity’s accounting policies or

: accmmﬁnv esfzmates.

PAS 16 and PAS 41, dgricuinre - Beaver Pimtis {Amendments). The amendments change
the accounting requirements for biological szsets that meet the definition of bearar plants.

- Under the smendments, biclogical assets that meet the definition of bearer plants will no

longer be within the scope of PAS 41, Agriculire. Inateed, PAS 16 will apply. After initial
recognition, bearer plante will be messured under PAS 16 at sccumulated cost (befors
maturity) and using either the cost mods! or revaluation model (affer meturity). The
amendments also reguire that producs that grows on bearsr plans will romain in the scops of
PAS 41 measured at fair value loss costs to sell. For govermment granis related o boarer
plants, PAS 29, docowsting Jor Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistaice,
will apply. The amendments are refrospsctivaly effective for annual periods begiming onor

efter January 1, 2016, with early sdoption permitted,

TAS 16 and PAS 38, Futangible desers - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortization (Amendments). The amendments clarify the principle in FAS 16 and

PAS 38 that revenns refiects & pattern of ecopomic benefits that are generated from operating
& business (of which the asset is part) rathier than the sconomic benefits that are consumed
throngh use of the asset. As & reguit, 8 Tevenue-based method cannot be used fo depreciate

p; operty, psam and eguipmsitt aud may me be peed in very limited cirenmstances to amortize
intangible assets. The amendments are effective pr Gspsc‘waiy for annual periods boginning
on or after Jamusry 1, 2016, with early adoption permitied.
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PAS 27, Separare Financial Statements - Bgutty Method in Separale Financial Statements
{Amendments). The amendments will allow entities to uss the equity method to account for
investments In subsidiarfes, joint venfures and agsociates in thelr separate financial statements,
Entities already applying PFRS and slecting to change to the sguity method in its separate
financial statements will have to apply that change retrospectively. The amendments are
effective Tor annual psrmds beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with sarly adoption

permitied.
Annuel Improvemeats t© PFRS (2012-2014 cycle)

*  PERS 3, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in
Methods of Disposal, The mmendinent is applied prospectively and clarifiss that changing
from a disposal through sale 1o 2 disposal through distribution to owners and vice-verss
shouid not be considercd to be & new plan of disposal, rather it is 2 continuation of the
original plan. Thers i, thersfore, no interruption of the application of the requirements in
PFRS 5. The amendment also clarifies that changing the disposal method does not change
the date of classification,

s PFRE 7, Financial nstruments: Disclosuras - Servicing Conrocls. PFRS 7 requires an
entity o provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in & fransferred assef that is
derecognized in its sntirsty, The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract thet
includes o fes can constitute continuing involvement in o financial asssl. An entify must
as3ess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance in PFRS 7 in order to
asgess whether the disclosures are required. The emendment is (0 be applied such that the
assessment of which servieing vontrects eonstitute continuing invelvement will nesd to be
dons rerospectively, However, comparstive disslosurss are not required to be provided
for any period beginning before the annual period in which the entity first appliss the
amsndmurzts»

*  PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Iterim Financial
Staremerzs, This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the diselosures
on offsefting of financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed
interim financial report unless these provide & significant update to the information
reportad in the most récent sonual report,

¢ PASIS, Eﬁzptovsz Benefits - Regional Market Issue Regarding Discount Rare. This
amendment is azzphea progpeatively and slarifies that market depth of hng guality
corporate bonds I assessed based on the currency in witich the cbﬁgahm is denominated,
rather than the country whers the sbiigation is lncated. When there is no deep mar&at for

high quality corporate boads in that SUITENCY, government bond rates must be used

= RAS 34, terim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of Information ‘Elsewhere in the
Interim Financigl Report’, The amendment is applied retrospes mve?y and olarifies that the
requirsd tterim disolosures must either be in the interim financial Statements or
incorparated by cross-referance botween the interim financial statements snd wherever
sse are inchuded within the greater interin financial report (2.8, in the management

sommeuiary or risk repert).
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Effective Jawuary 1, 2018

'

PERS §, Financial Instrumenss. In Tuly 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board
{(1ABB} issued the fina! varsion of International Financial Reporting Standard (JFRS) 9,
Finagnriel Instruments. The new standard (renamed PFRS 9) reflects all phases of ths
financial instriments project and replaces PAS 38, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measuremeni, and all previous versions of PFRE 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge acoounting, PFRES 9
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with sarly application
permitted. Retrospective application 15 required, but providing comparative information is not
compuisory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are generally appiied prospectively, with

some Hmited exceptions. Harly application of previous versions of PFRS 9 (2009, 2010 and

2813) is permitied i the date of injtial application is before Febmary 1, 2015,

IFRS 15, Re'vezme From szz‘racz.s* Wikl Czwzarne;s IF RS 15 was issue‘ci in May 2014 by the

W!f:n customers, Under IFRS 15, revanue s re cagﬂwed 8t fn amount that refiacts the
consideration to which an eniity expecis to be sntitled in exchange for transferring goods or

services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide & more siructured approach to
measuring and recognizing revenue. - ‘

The new revenue standard is apaiicabie to all entities and will superseds al} current revenue
recognition requirements under IFRS. Either s full or modified r“tmspé:ctxva application i
required for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, Harly adoption permitisd,

Effective Jamuary 1, 2018

[

IFRS 16, Leases. On January 13, 2016, the JASE issued itz new standard, IFRS 16, Leases,
which replaces International Acoounting Standard (IAS) 17, the ourrent leases standard, and
the reisted Interpretations.

Under the new standard, lessees will no longer classify their leases as either opersting or
finunce leases in accordance with TAS 17, Rather, lessees will apply the singia-ass#* model.
Under this modsl, lessess will recognize the assets and related liabilfties for most jeases o
their balance sheets, and subssquently, will deprecizie the lease assets and recogmza interest
on the lease Jiabilities in profit or loss. Leases with a torm of 12 months or fess or for which
the underlying asset is of low value are exempted from thess requirements,

The acﬂauaﬁag by Iessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward the
psmcml‘*s of lessar accounting under IAS 17, Lessors, however, will be required to disclose
mare information in their financial statements, particularly on the risk exposurs to residual

vaiue,
Tna new standard is effective for annus! periods beginning on or gfter January 1, 2015,

nifties may sarly adopt IFRS 16 but zmly if they heve also adoptsd IFRS 15, When adopting
IFRS 16, an optity is permﬁtvd to use sither a full retrospective or & modified refrospective
approach, with options 1o use vertain ransition reliefs.

RN



With Deferred Effective Date

*  Philippine Interpretation from International Finsncial Reporting Interpretations Comumittes 13,

Agreements for the Construction of Ren! Estate, This interpretation oovers accounting for
revenue and essociated expenses by entities that undertaks the construction of rea) sstate

directly or through subcontractors. The interpretation reguires that revenue on construction of

real estate be recognized only upon comp}e’céon,- sxcept when contrect to be scoounted for
under PAS 11, Construction Contrazss , ar involves rendering of services in which case,

revenus is recognized based on stage of completion, Coniracts invelving provision of services
with the construction materials and where the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to

buyer on & continuous basis will also be accounted for based on stage of completion, The
SEC and the Financial Reporting Standards Council have deferred the effectivity of this
interpretstion until the final revenus standard is issued by the IASB and an svalnation of the
requirements of the final revenue stendard sgainst the practices of the Fhilippine real estate

indusiry is compisied, B g
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Summary of Sigaificant Accounting Policies |

Current versus Nonoprrent Classification

The Company presents assets and labilitios in statement of financial positian besed on
currsni/noncurrent classification.

An asset as purrent whern it is;

= Expected to be realized or intended to ba sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
Expected to be realized within twelve montha affter the reporting pariod; or
Cash and cash squivalent unless resiricted from being sxchanged or LSEG to seftiz g

for at ieast tweive months after the reporting period.

"

L 3

& liability

A& lighility s currsst whe:

= I is sxpected ic be setiled in npormal operating cycle;

* It is held primarily for the purpose of mading;

= Itis-due to be settlad within twelve months after the reporting period; or

= Thare is no unconditional Tight to defer the settiameant of the Liability for at least twelve
months afier the reporting period,

The Company classifies all other assers and Habilities as nonciorent.

Fair Valus Messurement

Fair value is the estimated price that would be recefved to sell an asset or paxé to transfer a Habiliz
in an urderly transaction between merket participants at the measursment date, The fair value

‘measurenient is based op the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the

liability takss place either:

£ in the principal market for the asset or Hability; or

1y

¢ inthe absence of & principal market, in the moat advaniageous merket for the asset or fiability

R
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The principal or the most advantageous market must be aecessibls to the Company.

The fair valus of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the ssset or linbility, 2ssuming that market participants act iz their best
economic interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account & market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selilng it to
another markst partoipant that would use the rsset in its highest and best uss,

The Company uses valuation technigues that are uppropriate in the ciremmstancss and for which
sutficient data are available to messurs fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable iaputs.

Assets and Habilities for which fair value i measured or disclosed in the Ccmpanv {inancial
statements ere catogorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as foliows, based on the
flowsst level input that is significant to the falr valus measurement as » whale:

*  Level1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market pricss in sctive markets for identical assets or linbilities;

= Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level fnput that is significant to the fair
value measurement iz dirgctly orindirgetly observable; and

¥ Tevel 3 - Valustion technigues Tor which the lowest leval input that i sigmificant to the fair
velus measurement is unobservable,

For assets and Habilities that are recognized in the financial statements on & recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have ccourred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing oategorization (based on the lowest level input that i significant to the fair value
measurement a5 & whols) at the end of each reporting date.

The Company determings the policies and procedures for both recurring and nop-recurring fair
value measurements. For the purpogs of fair valus disclosures; the Company hae defermined
slasses of assets and lisbilities an the basis of the nature, characteristics end risks of the asset or
linbility and the levsl of the fair valus hierarchy.

Dstails as to how the fair value of assots and liabilities are measured are provided in Notw 14.

Finangia! Instrumarnts

A financial ingtrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and &
financizl liabillty or equity and & financial Hability or equity instruments of another entity.

Date of ﬁecogmfmrz, The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial izamhty in the
statements of financial position when it becomes e party to the cortractual provisions of the
instrument. Purchases or sales of financisl asssts that reguirs deiivery of assets within a time
frame established by reguiation or sonvention in the market place (rbgwai way frades) are
recognized on the trade date, i.¢. the date thar the Company commits to purchase or self the asge

Fnitiol Recognition emd Measurement, Financial assets are classified, at initia} recognition, &3
finsncial assets at fair value through profit or loss (WV%L jouns and rocsivables, mie»’co—mwzty
(HTM) investmernts, AFS. investments, or as darivatives designated as hedging 1 instruments inoan
effective hedge, a8 sporoprigte. All financial asssts ars recognized amtrsif -t fair value plus, In

THWH?EHHWW!W IRANER

~f



-8

the cese of financial assets not recorded st FVPL, transaciion costs that are atﬁ*zbutabi* to the
acquisition of the financial assets,

Financlal Habilities are classifisd, af nifial recﬁgmf;m, as financial Habilities at FVPL, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated es bedging instruments in an sffective hedge, as
appl’ﬁp"zata All financial Habilities are recognized initially at fair vaiue and, in the case of Joans
and borrowiags and payables, net of directly aftributable transaction costs.

The Company hes no financial asset and financial Habilifes at FVPL, HTM nvestments and
derivatives designated a5 b..agmg instruments in an effsctive hedge as af Dacemtber 31, 2015 and

2014,

Subsequent Measuremen. . The subsequent measurement of financial assets and Habilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and Receivabias. Loans and recejvabies are non~derivative financial agsets with fixed or
determinable payments &t d¥e not quoted in an active market. After inftial measurement, such

‘finarncial assets are subssquently messured &t amortized cost using the effentive interest rats (EIR)

methoed, less impairment. Amortizad cost iz ealoulated by taking info secount any. diseount or
premium on sequigition and fee or costs that ere an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amoartization

and the losses arising from Impairment are recognized in profit or loss.

This category includes cesh and eash squivalents and acoourts reselvable.

AFS Investments. AFS financis] assets inclide aquity mvestments and debt securities, Equity
mvestments classified ag AFS are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor

designated at FVPL, Diebtsecurities in this category ere those that are intended to be held for an
indefinits period of time and that may be sold in response to needs for Hguidity or in response to

changzs in the market conditions,

Afer initial messurement; AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealized gains or losses recognized in OCT and credited in the AFS reserve until the investment
is derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or foss is resegnized in the statement of
comprehensive incoms, of the invessment is determined to bs impaired, when the cumulative loss
is reclasgified from the APS reserve 1o the statement of aampz*ehenssva income, Interest earned
whilst holding AFS financial zszets is rsparteﬁ 55 interest income using the EIR method.

The Compeny's AFS investment in 2015 and 2014 conaists of ungueted debt seourities.

Other Fipancial Liabilities. This category | pertains to financial Habilities that are not held for
trading or not designated a5 8t FVPL upon the i inception of the {iebility. These include Liabilitie
arising from operations or borrowings. Other finanetal lebilities are recognized initially at fm.
value and are subsequently carried at amortized cost, taking into account the impact of applying
the EIR method of amartization (or aceretion) for any related premium, discount and any directly
attributable ransection costs, Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilitos
are derecognized as wsl! as fhrough the EIR amortization process.

This categary includes accounts payable and other current Habilities {excluding stetutory
payables), due to shareholders and dividends pavabla.
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and Lisbilities

Financial Assef. A financial asset (or, where applicable, & part of a financis! asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is primarily daracogmzed (Le., removed from the Company’s
statement of financial position) when:

*  the rights to receive cash flows from the assef have: sxpired; or

= the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash fipws from the asset or has sssumed oo
chligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to & third party under 2
‘pass-through’ arrengemsnt; and either (2) the Company has fransferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks aud rewards of the asset, but has transferred sontrol of the asgst,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into & pass-through arrangement, it evalugtss 1£ and.to-what extent it hag refained the risks and
rawards of owneramp When it hag neither transrerrec nor refained substentially all of the tisks
and rewards of the ssset, nor transferrsd control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize
the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Company also recognizes an associated liability, The n—ansfarrsd asget and the associated Uability

are measured an a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has refained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of 2 guarantse over the fransferred essets is measured
gt the lower of the original carrying amownt of the asset and the maximum amount of
considsration that the Company could be required to repay.

Under the *pass-through” test, the Company is deemed to bavs transferred substanfially the risks
and rewards of the relsted mvesﬁn'ant in GMA. Accordingly, the nvestment in GMA and the
related PDR liabilities have been derecognized under PAS 39, Financial Instruments; Recogrition
and Measurement (see Note 5).

Financiol Ligbilities. 4 financial liability is derscopnized when the obligation under the Hability
is discharged or cancelled or has expired. When zn existing financial lisbility is replaced by
anether from the semie tsuder on substentially differsnt terms, or the torms of an existiog lability
are substeatially modified, such &n exchangs or modificetion is treated as & derscognition of the
original liability and the recognition of & new Hability, and the difference in the respective
cerrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

lmpairment of Financial Asssts

The Company assesses at sach reporting date whether & financial asset or group of fnancial asseis
is impaired. An impaimment sxists of one or more svents that occurred since the initial recognition
of the asset (an nowrred loss event), has an hmpact on the estimated funure cash flows of the
finsncizl msser or 2 group of financial sasets that can be reliably estimated, Bvidence of
impairment may include indications that the debtors or & group of debtors is experizncing
significant fivencial dz’ﬁiamty, default or delingueney in interest or principa} payvments, the
probebility that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial rearganization and where observable
date indicate that there is measurable decrease in the sstimated future cash flows, such as changes

in arrears or sconomic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Assets Carried ot Amortized Cosi. The Company first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for finencial assets that are individually significant, and indtvidual Iv or collestively
for finanocial sgsets that are not individually sigrificant, If the Company determines LhaL no
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objeative svidence of impaimmént exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, the asset is included in & group of financial assets with shnilar credit risk
characteristios and that group of finencial assets Is collectively assessed for impainment, Assefs
that gre individually essessed for impatrment and for which an impairmant loss ts, or continues to
be, recognized ars no longer included in a colleative assessment of impairment,

"The emount of any Impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between the assat’s

-carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected

eredit iosses that have not yet been incurted). The present vaiue of the astimated future cash flows
iz discounted st the financial asset’s original BIR.

The carrying amount of the asset Is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the Joss
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Intersst income to be accrued on the reduced

cerrying amount and is acerued using the rare of interest used to discount the future cash flows for

the purpose of messuring the mpairment loss, Loans together with the assaciated allowancs are
written off when there 15 no realistic prospect of futurs recovery and all collateral has been
realized or has besn transferred to the Company. -If, in a subsequent vear, the amount of the
estimated impairment lost igreases or decreases basause of an svent cceurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized tmpsirment loss iz increased or reduced by
edjnsting the allowanoce account. If o write-oif is later recovered, the recovery is credited o

nterest oxpense in profit or loss.

AFS Favesiments. For AFS financial sssers, the Company assesses st sach reporting date whether
there is ohjective evidence that an nvestment or a group of investments is impeired.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFE, the impairment is assessed beved op the same
critaria as financial assets carrisd af amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for
impaimment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the
currern: fair valus, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in profit or

foss.

Futurs intersst incoms continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset,
using the rate of intsrest used to disconnt the future cash flows for fas purpose of measuring the
impairment logs. The Interest is recorded as part of interest mooms, If, in 2 subsequent year, the
fair velue of » debt instrument increases and the inorease oan be objectively related o an event
securring sfier the impairment {oss was recognized in profit or loss, the impsirment loss is
reversed through profit or loss.

‘Day I Difference’. Where ths fransaction price in a non-active markst is difforent from the fair
value besed on other observeble current markst transactions in the same instrument or based on ¢
valuation technique whose variables include only date from observable market, the Company
recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a *Day | difference”) in
profit or loss unless it qualifies for recoguition as some other type of assst. In cases where
unobserveble data Is used, the difference between the trapsaction price and model value is
recognized in profit or loss only when the inputs become observabls or when the fnstrument is
derecognized. For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriste method of
recogmizing the ‘Day | differencs’ amount.

Offsetting of Fipanaial Instruments S . o )
Financial assets and finencial liehilities are offset and the net amount s reporisd in the statement

" 2 v e A) Pl + kd
of financial posttion if there is & currently enforcerbls legal right to offset tie recognized mouﬁts
and thers is an intention to settls on & net basis, or to realize the assets and sstite the Habilities
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simultaneously. The Compeny assessss that it has & cursently enforosable right of offset if the
right is not contingent on a future svent, and is legally enforceable in the nonmal course of
business, event of default, and event of insolvency or banksuptey of the Company and all of the

counterpartiss

Cash gnd Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash an hend and in banks. Cash squivalents are short-term, highly liquid

. investrnents that are readily convertible io known amounts of cash with original maturities of thirse

months or jess from dates of placement and are subject o an insignificant risk of change in value,

Other Current Agsste
Other gurrent assets includes prepaid taxes which represents | prior year's excess tax credits from

taxes withheld which ars deductible from the Company’s income 1ax payable, and input value-
added tax (VAT),

Egquity ‘
Camtzﬂ stock is meastired at par valug for all shares jssued, Incrediental costs incurred directly

atirbutahle to the fssuance of new shares ars shown eqmtjy a3 & deduction from pmceeas, net of
tax. Procesds and/or fair value of considerations received in excess of par value are recognized as

additional paid-in capital.

E:ﬁ\" SHue

Revenue is recognized to the extent that 1t is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Comypany and the amount can be reliably measured, regardiess of when the payment iz being
mads. Revenus is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking
into acconnt contraciually defined terms of payment aad excluding taxes or duty. The Company
espesses iis revenue arrangements against specific oriteriz in arder to determine if it is acling as
principal or agent, The Company hes concinded that it is scting as & prineipal in all its ravenue
arrangements, The following specific recognition criferiz must also be met before revenue is
recoguized:

Interest income, Revenus Is recognized as the imtersst aceruss, faking info account the effective

vield on the asset.

Revenue s recognized upon conversion of PLDRs to commeon sharss,

Expenses .
Bxpenses presented g5 “Opdrating sxp=ns="” account i the statements of comprehensive income

sre vecognized 58 incwrred,

Teaxas
Current Income Tax, Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured
at the amount sxpested to be revovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax raies and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted at
reporiing date.

Current incoms tax relating to fems r»cagmzed directly in equity is recognized in aquity and not
iz profit or loss, Management periodically evaluates positions wken in the tax returns with respect
te situations in which apmmania 1ex regulations are subject to inferpretation and estabiishes

provisipns where appropriate.
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Deferred Income Tox. Deferred tneoms tax is provided using the balance shest Liability method
on al) termporary differences ai reporting date between the tax bases of assets and [fabilifies and
their carrying amounis for financial reporting purposss at the reparting date,

Deferrad income tax asssts ars recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward
benefits of excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corpotate income fax
(RCTT) and net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable
income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
bensfite of excess MCIT over RCIT and NOLCO can be utilized sxcept:

5 whers the defrred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differsnce arises
from the initial recognition of an gsset or liability in o transaction that is not 2 business
combination znd, af the time of the wayssction, affects neither the accournting Incoms nor

taxabla profit or loss; and

*  in respeot of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
#8socidtes and intersst in Joint arrangements, deferred income taz assets are recognized oply o
the extent that it is probebls that the femporary differavces will reverse in the foresseabls
futirs and texable income will be avallable against which thes temporary differences can be

utifized.

Ths carrying amount of deferred income iax esssts s reviewed &t sach reporting date and reduced
 to the extent that it'is no lenger probable that sufficient taxable prafit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred income tax assets to be uiilized, Unrecognized deferred income tax assets
are reasgessed at oach reporting date and are revognizad 1o the extent that it has becoins probable

that fiture taxsble profit will allow the deferrad income tex assets to be recoversd.

Deforred income tax lishilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differencss, except:

£ Whare the deferred income tax Bability arisss from the inftial recognition of goodwill or an
assef or Hability in & transaction that s not & business combination and, at the fims of the
trangaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

= In respect af Fraxable tempoarary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, whes the timing of the reversal of the temporery
differsnces orn be controlied and it Is probabls that the tamporary differsnces will not roverss

in the {foresesable fityre,

Deferred income tax aggets and liabiltties are measured at the tex rates apsncabih to the year when
the asset is realized or the hability I seftled, based on tax refes and tax laws that have been to be

snected or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax assets and Habilities are offset If & legally enforceable right exists fo offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred income taxes relafe to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation autharily.

Income tax relating to OCI is recognized in OCI szetion of the statements of comprebensive
meome. .

4T Revenus, sxpenses &nd assets are recognized net of the smount of VAT. The net amount of
VAT recoverabie from, or payable to, fhe taxation suthority is ineluded as partof Other current



-13.

aszefs” or “Accounts payeble and other surrent liabilittes” accounts in the statements of fnancial
position,

Earningz Per Share (FPS)

Bugic EPS amounts are caloniated by dividing net income for the yedr by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, The Comproy has no dilutive potential
commen shares outstanding, toerefore, basic BPS is the same as dijuted BPS,

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Comparny has a present obligation (Jegal or constructive) where,

a5 a result of 2 pest event, it is probable that an outflow of mssets embodying economic benefits will
be requived 1o seftle the obligation and & reliable estimate can be made of the amoun: of the
obligation. If the effect of the fime value of money iz materizl, provisions are defermined by
discounting the expeoted future cash flows af a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time valve of monsy and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where
discounting is used, the incrpasesin the provision-due to the passage of time is racognized as interest
expense, Where the Company expects & provision to be reimbursed, the retmbursement is
recognized #5 & separate asset but only when the receipt of the refmbursement is virtually certain,

Coutingeneiss
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the finanoial statements. These ars disclosed in the

notes to finencial statements unless the pessibility of ag outflow of resourees smbodying
sconomic benafits is remofe. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but
are disciosed in the notes to fiuancial statements when an inflow of ezonomic benefits is probable.

Events mfter the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additions! information about the Company’s position at the
reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when materisl.

Summary of Significant Accounting Judgments, Bxfimales and Assumpiions

The preparation of the finaveial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the Compeny o
make estimates and assumpiions that affsot the reportad amounte of assets, liabilities, incoms and
expenses and disclosure of continpent assets and labilities, Uncertainty about these assumptions
end estimates could result in outcomes that require & material adjustment to the carrying amount of

assets or lisbilities affected in finyre periods.

Bstimetes are continually evaiuated and are based on historical experiencs and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are belisved o be determinable under the

sircumstancss.,

The key estimates and zssumptions concerning the futurs and other key sources of sstimation
uncertainty at reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing & matsrial adjustment to the
carrving mmounts of asssts and Hebilfities within the next financial year, are discussed below, The
Company based its essumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
siatements wers prepared. Existing ciroumstancss and assumptions about future developments
however, may change dus to market changss or siroumstances arising beyond the contral of the
Company. Such changes are reflectsd in the assumptions when these ocour.

I
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Determining Fair Vaive qf A4S jvestment. The Company has no intention of selling its AFS
investment in the near term. If is baing held indefinitely and may be sold in response to liguidity
requirsmsnty or chenges in market condition,

The Company carries AFS Investment af fair vatua, Since AFS invesiment cannot be derfved
from active markets, the fair value is determined using appropriste valustion technigue, which is
discounted cash flow methedology. The inputs to the mode] are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
velue.

The fzir value of AFS investment is discussed i Notz 14,

Impairment of 488 Investmen:. The Company follows the guidance of PAS 39 to determine when
an available-for-sale investment is impaired. Judgment by management is required in the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining if allowance is
veguired. Such sstimates are based on assumptions abgyt a number of fastors and actual results
may differ, Allowancs may be based on any deterioration in the internal rating of the investment
since it was auqmred Thess internal ratings take into consideration factors such as any
deterigration in rigk, industry, and the financial health and near<term buginese outinok of the
issuer, Bs well as identified structural weaknesses or deterioration in cash flows. :

There was no provision for impdimment losses i 2015 and 2014, The carrying valve of AFS
investment amounted to 220,81 million and 21,76 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respeetively (see Nate 7). '
Bstimating Realizability ofDeferrea’ Income Tax dssets. The Compeny’s psssssment on the
recovnmcn of deferred incomes tax assets on nondeduotible temporary dlfferences and

carxyf orward henefits of NOLCO and excess MCIT is based upon the likely timing and level of
forecasted taxable income in the subsequent pariods, This forecast is based on the Company's

futura expectations on revenus and expenses,

The Company did not recognize deferrad income tex assefs amounting to 2096 million and
£0.87 million as at Decamber 31, 2015 and 2014 , respectively as management believes that
sefficlent taxable profit will not be available agamsf which the deductible temporary difference

can be uiilized {sa., Nots 11),

ih

Philtppine Deposit Recaipts

On My 30, 2007 and August 21, 2007, the Ccmpamz istued 822,115,000 and 123,317,000 PDRs
relating to GMA shares, respectively. Total number of ssusd FIRs is 945,432,000 for =

consideration of 28,30 per share or B8, 036,172,000,

Each PDR grants the holders, npon peyment of the exercise price and Elﬁ}jﬁ'ct 1o certein other
rondifions, the delivery of one GMA share or the sale of and delivery of the proceeds of such sale
of one (BVIA share. The Company remains to be the registered owner of the GMA shares coversd
by the PDRs, The Company also retains the voting rights over the GMA sharss.

The GMA shares are stili subject to ownership restrictfons on shares of corporations engaged in
mass media and GMA may reject the transfer of shares to persons pther than Philippine nationals.

The PDRs wers listed in the PSE on July 30, ﬁG?, and the same may be exercised at any time
from said date. Any cash dividends or other cash dzs*nbutms in respect of GMA sharss recaived

AT



by'the Compeny shall be applied fowerd the operating expenses of the Company for the current
and urecading years. A firther amount equal to the operating sxpenses in the preceding year shall
be set aside to meet operating ar other sxpenses for the succeeding vears, Any amount in excess
of the appregats of the operating expenses paid and the cpwmting Fund for such period shafl be
distributed to PDR holders pro-rate on the first business day after such cash dividends are received

by the Company.

Upon exercise of the PDRs, an sxercise price of 20,05 (VAT mciusrvez per share shall be paid by
the PDR holders, Ths exereise price is shown as “Exercise fees™ account in the statements of
profit or loss. Bxercise fees amounted to 20,09 million, 80.41 million and ol in 2015, 2014 and

2013, respectively,

Immediately prior to tha clnsing of the PDR offering and additional issuances deseribed above,
M4, to whieh the Company {5 affilisted, transferred 945,432,000 GMA shares to the Cempany
in reiation to which the PDORs were tssued, For as long as the FDRs are not exercised, the shares
underlying the PDRs will continus to be registered in the newme of, and Gwneby the Company,
and all rights pertaining to these shares, inoluding voting rights, shall be exercised by the
Compeny. The obligations of the Company to deliver the GMA. sharss on exercise of the right
conteined in the PDRs ars secured by the Pledge of Sharer in favor of the Pledge Trustee acting on
behalf of each holder of & PDR over the GMVLA shares,

At any time after the PDR offering, & sharsholder may, at his option and from time to time, deliver
shares to the Compeny in exchange for an equal number of PDRs. The exchange i based on
prevailing traded valus of GIMA shares at the time of transaction with the corresponding PDR

optivn prise

As discussed above, the Company rotains the rights to receive the cash Tlows from ifs investment
in GViA and essumes & coniractual obligation to pay those aash flows o the PDR holders, net of
operating expenses (a “pass-through” errangement), The “pass-through™ test iz met because the
Company (z) hes no ebligetion to the PDR holders unless it collects nqmvaianr amoumnts from s
investment in GMA, (b) is contractually prohibited from seliing or pledging iis Investment in
GMA other than as secm'*x?:y to the PDR holders for the obligation to pay the cash flows, and

{c) has an ahh@ﬁm t0 remit any cash Jows from the investment in GMA to the FDR holders

without maserial delay,

Under the “pass-through® test, the Company is deemed to have trensferred substantially the rﬁks
and rewards of its fuvestment in GMA, Accordingly, the investment in GMA and the Habilitis
related i the imsuance of the PR sre not recognized by the Company.

The following are ths deisils and movements of the PDRs and the wnderlving GVEA sheres for the
vears ended December 31

PERg Nanmber of Shares
2018 24314 2015 2014
Balanee at beginning of year B7.234,832,500 B7,288,833,300 548,345,000 §57,509,800
Exeroize of FDRs (16,965,150 {77.900,800) 1.995,0005 (8,164,800}
Balance at end of yesr B7,195.967,350 ©£7,210,932,500 846,348,180 848,345,000

On March 30, 2015, the Company sporoved & oash distribution to PDR holders of 80.25 per shars,
b relation to dividends declered by GMA, tomling to B211.75 miltion to all shareholders of record

&5 at April 24, 2015,

AR
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Qn April 17, 2013, the BOD approved 4 resolution fo pass on the entirs amount of the cash
dividends received from GMA without deducting the Company’s 2015 projected operating
sxpenges. Such mepenses shall be covered by the interest income from the Company®s cash and
cash equivalents and AFS investment. v

" The cash dividends were remitted to PDR holders an May 19, 2015,

The Company retaing the right to receive cash flows from itz investments in GMA but it alse
assumes & contractusl obligation to pay thoss cash flows to the PDR holders which is considered &
“pass,‘»mmugh arr&ngement Thus, the Company did not reuc:gmza the dividend incoms received
from GMA ariisg from the acouisition and holdiog of the underlying shares of GMA In its

financial statemenis.

As disoussed in Note 16, on April §, 2016, the BOD approved a cash distribution to PDR holders
in relation to dividends declared by GMA. o

Cask snd Cash Eguivalents

2815 2014

Cash on hend and in banks ' B722,018 21,240,820
Short-term deposits 26,124,923 25424 401
, 224,846,541 224,665,221

Cash in barks earn interast af the respective bank deposit tates, Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of up fo three months nupendmg on the immediats cash raquirements of the
Company, and sarn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates,

Interest income sarned from cash in banks.and short-term deposits amounted to 20.52 million,
21,12 million, and ®1.21 miliion in 2013, 2014 and 2013, regpectively,

Avatishie-for-Ssle Investment

In 2014, the Company puranasvd at par atan—yem* UBP Tier Note with a face V&IDV af
221.00 milliocn bearing & fixed interest rate of 5,38%. The maturity date of this note is ap

February 20, 2023,

Interest income earned on the UBP Tiar Note amounted to 21.13 million and PG, 12 millign In

3015 and 2014, respactively.

The movement in ATS iovestment is as follows:

. 2015 2014
Balance gt beginming of year 821,788,216 ‘ B
Additions - 21,000,000
Change in fair valus {853,65%) 758218

B20805,523 B21,759,216

Balance af and of year
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Movement of net unreslized gain on AFS investment is as follows:!

‘ . 20158 2014
Balance gt beginning of year BRI 451 - B
Gain (ioss) due to changes in fair valus of AFS )
investment {953,693} 759,216
Tax affect of the changes i fair values 227,765 {227,765}
Balanos af end of year (E194,477} B531,451
8. Accouniz Payable and Other Current Liabilities
2015 2014
Accounts payable 25,881 ®7,226
Accrred expenses:
Brofegsional and trustfess 350,008 215,510
(ithers 2,261 1,760
Deferred cuiput VAT 2,618 4,284
Dividends payable 2,418 2,014
B366,179 B041.184

Acvounts payable and acorued expenises are noninteresi-bearing and are normally settled within
the next financial year, Acorusd expenses represent andit fees, retainer fees and miscellanaous

sxXpenses,

1y

Eguity

g Capital Stoclk

o

Ths Company has 10,000 euthorized, subscribed and issued cornmon shares with 210.00 par
vaiue pur share.

The following summarizes the information on the Company’s registration of securitiss with
the SEC as required by Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended {2011}

Authorized Number
Number of Issued Issus/
Date of SEC Approval of Shares Sheres Offer Prics
July 30, 2007 ’ 545,432,000 945,432,000 : BR.50

Retained Barnings

Om. March 30, 2015, the BOD approved the Company's declaration and distribution of cash
dividends amounting to 80,50 million to al} stockholders of record as at December 31, 2014.

On April 8, 2016, cash dividends amounting to #0.60 million was declared by the BOD
{suec Note 18},

IR

|

|

4
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18, Operating Expenses

2015 2014 2013

Listing fees B576,046 T PR0O,2YS 8759,150
Professional fees 475,291 ‘280,085 475,835
Taxes and licenses 28,382 42,788 33,168
Others 22,694 31,858 31,982
£1,094.413 21,045,025 81,344,184

11. Ineome Tazses

Current fncome Tax
The ca*npanents of the Commpany’s prcvzsmu for current income tax are a5 follows:

gr oo 2015 2014 2013

Figial tax interest P410,572 PJ48,563 - B241,090
MCIT 1,782, 8,183 -
2412,354 B256,746 241,050

The reconciliation of the provision for income tax computed at statufory income tax rate and the
provision for income tax s shown in the staements of comprehensive income is summarized as

follows:

2015 2014 2813
Income tax computed at stabutory '
incoms tax rate B314,264 - B182,080 B41,607)
Incoms tex effect of
Interest income subjectad to
final tax {203,285} (124,282) £120,549)
Movement in unrecognized :
defarred income tax assety : 56,306 {181,081} 326,963
Bxpired NOLCO and MCIT 267,068 380,008 76,280
B412,354 © PR5E,746 B241,099

Deferred Ingome Tax
The componenis of unrevognized deferred income tax assels are ag fBHBWa}

2815 2014

NOLCOD B303,613 £256,538
Unrealizad loss on AFS investment 58,343

MCIT ‘ 89,965 22,634

o ’ - B963,921 B§55,272

I
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As at December 31, 2015, NOLCO and MCTT that can be claimed as deduction from future
taxable incame and RCIT due, respectively, are sz follows:

Date Paid/Incurred _ Carryforward Benefit Up To NOLCO MCIT
December 31,2013 Decomber 31, 2016 B],344,184 B
etember 31, 2014 December 11, 2017 635,883 8,183
Devember 31, 2015 December 31, 2918 1,005,310 1;782
B2 085,377 B 965
The movements in NOLCO and MCIT follow:
215 2014
NCLCO:
Baiattzce at beginning of year B2,B55.461 BI486,273
Add}tiﬁns ‘ B 1,005,310 635,883
Exnired NOLCO o {875,394 (1,266,695)
Balance at end gf vear B2985377 BT B55,46]
MCTT; .
Balance at beginning of year 812,634 P4.45]
Additions 1,782 8,183
Expired MCIT (4,451} -
Balance at end of yesr ¥0,965 R17 634

In 2015, deferred income tax asset emonnting o B0.23 million was partially recognized to offset
against deferved inpome tax liability of the same amonnt avising from vorealized gain on AFS
investmant, As af Decamber 31, 2015 and 2014, deferred income tay Habilin emonnting to

nil and 20.23 million, respectively, is pressnted upder equity in the statements of financial

positior,

o

. Related Party Disclosures

Partigs are consldered to be related if one party has the ability, directly and indirectly, to control
the uther party or sxerciss sighificant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions, Partiss are also considered to be ralated if thay are subject to common

pontrol,

Transactions with related parties have been entsrad into at terms ro less favorabie than could have
besn obiained If the fransaotions wers enferad into with unrelatsd parties, The Company's
financial statements include the following amounts resulting from the fransactions with related

parties g at December 31:

Ouistanding

AmounyVolume
Category Yeur  of Transactions Payeble Tarms Condilions
Sharekolders k
Portion of proceeds reteined 2813 B 847,273,600  Upon demand, Tnsecured
fom issuance af PDRs 2014 - 47,271,600 nopiuterest-hearing
Beio, Guzon, Rime Law Pirm 2015 109,893 200,008 Upon demand, ' Usiseoyred
014 341,615 90,30¢ nonintereg-beering

IR
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The outstanding balance of "Due to sharsholders™ account in the statements of financial pasition
partzins to B0.05 per PDR portion of the original procseds retained by the Company, as the FDR
issuer, in consideration for the rights granted under the PDRs. This amount will be used for the
liquidation of expenses related fo the issuance of the PDRs. Any excess 15 to be remitted to the
selling sharsholders.

Thes Compeoy's kay managcmsm pzrscmnel are employed by GMA and no part of their salaries
was allocated fo the Company,

payments as at December 312

. Financial Risk Management Ghjectives and Polictes

The Company’s principal financial instruments {nciude cash and cash equivalents and AFS
invesbnent. The main purposs of these financial instruments 15 to finznce the Company’s
aperations. The Company has other financial sssets and {iabilities such as aceounts recsivable,
acconms payable and other surrent liabilittes {excluding statutory payables) and-dus to
shareholders, whicit arise directly from its oparatiogs.

The main risks arising from the Compary’'s financial statemenis ars as follows:

= Liguidity risk. Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Company may encounier
- difficuitias in ralsing funds to meet commitments from finencisl instruments,

s Intarest rate risk, Fized rate financisl Instrument is subject to fair vaive interest rate rigk,

v Credii visk, Credit risk ariges from default of the counterparty, ‘

The BOD revisws and spproves the Compeny’s objectives and pelicies.

Lignidity Risk _
The Company’s objective in ixqmdzty managemrent is to ensurs that the Company has sufficient

liquidity to mest abiigations under normal and adverse circumstances and 1s able to teke
advantage of investment opporiuniiies as they aris&,

The Company manages its Hquidity risk by using its cash and cash equivalents from operation
and intersst incoms from AFS investment to meet itz shart-tarm liguidity needs, The Compar
likewise reguntarly svalngtes other fnancing instrumenty snd arrangements o broaden the

Compeany’s range of financing sources.

s
iy

The table below summerizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets used for
liquidity risk management purposes and financial Habilities based on contractual undiseovnted

Az ot Dacember 31, 2015
Migre then

O Demand 3 to 12 Moaths i ysar Totsl
Finunclal Assats
{Zash and cash equivalents B246,846,541 2 . 826,846,541
Arcours recefvable - 188,135 8,380 184,515
APS investment -~ - 28,206,396 25 206,350

Bi6,84654) B15G,135 $78,215.770 B55,25%,452
Finaneie! Linbilifes
Accppanls payable and other cerren )

lishilities® B363,561 £ . B #363,561

D= fo sharehplders 47,271 880 - - 47,271,608
’ 297,635,161 P B B47,635,161

*Erctuding deferved oot 7 gmorasing o 21,618 ay af December 33, 20135,

TR AT



As gt Decemiber 31, 2014

Mors thar
On Demand 310 12 Months 1 yegr Tatal
Finnncial Agsety
Cesh nd cash equivalients 826,683,221 B~ Fm B26,665,221
Accoums receivable 183,387 - 183,387
AFS investment - - 28 515,941 28.515.941
: B26.665,421 F1§3,387 F28515,941 B55,364,548
Finaneind Linbiilties .
Apcounts payable and other current
lisbHifties* . 8236010 s p £236,910
Diie to sharehoiders 47,271,600 — - 47271,680
247 508,510 8 P P47,.508,510

*Exciuding defarred ouiput VAT amounting to 84284 os at December 31, 2014,

Interest Rate Risk
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in markst intsrest rates relat&s grimarily to the

Company's AFS investment which ere subject to fair value interest rate ritk.

Fair Volie Interesy Rore Risk. Fixedrale finsncial instrarents are subject to this risk. The
Company’s AFS investment earns interest 8¢ & fixed rate of 5.38% throughout the period of
investment. The following table below demonsiyates the sensitivity of fair value changs& due to
possible changs in interast rates with all nther variubles held constant (through the fimpact op ﬁmer

comprehiensive income).

Inurease
{Decrease} in Effsct on Equity
: Basis Points 2815 2014
AFS investment EN) (31 A04) (BB04,227)
: {50} 377,478 §43,111

Credit Risk
Credit rigk arising from vash and cash equivalents and AFS investment, the Company’s exposure

to credit risk arises from dafault of the counterparty, with & maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amount of the instruments, s the Compray’s poliey to enter into transactions with &
diveraity of creditworthy parties {o mmg&ta any significant concemiraion of gredit risk, The
Company hes an internal mechanism io monitor the granting of credit and management of ore dit
exposures. The Company hes made provisions, whers necessary, for potential losses on credits
extended. The Company does not require apy collateral for its financial assets,

As ut Desember 31, 20135 and 2014, the financial assets ars generally viewed by management as
good and collectible considering the oredit history of the counterparties. Past dus or impaired
financisl assets are very zmmmai in relation to the Company’s mml financial asseis. ‘

Cradit Quality of Financial Assets

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Company usmg high grade and stendard
grade as intemal I credit rafings.

High Grade. This pertains to a counterparty whoe is not exp“r}*ad by the Compeny to default in
settling its obligations, thus, credit risk fzapgsurv is minimal, This normally inctudes large prime

I’nanmal ms’nmuons and re;acau nartins
j s high grads are m’*mdcd in this category.

GG Ial
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The Compariy classified its cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand) end AFS
investmant as high grade financial assets as at December 31, 2015 and 2014,

Capital Management

The primary objsctive of the Company’s capital managsment is to ensure that it maintains & stong
eredit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder
value, '

The Comipany manages its capital structure and mekes adjustments to £, in the lght of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or edjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividapd payment 10 shareholders, payoff existing debts, retum capiial to shareholders or issus
18W Shares.

No changes wers made in the objectives, policies or progesses for the three vears ended
December 31, 20135, 2014 and 2013,

The Compary's Sapital management is undertaken by GMA. The Company’s capital includes the

total equity, before other comprehensive incoma, which amourited 1o 20.78 mitlon and
£0.64 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respeciively.

13,

Finanelal Assets and Linbilities

The following methods and assumptions are used to. sstimate the fair value of each financial

-instrument for which it is practicabls o estimate such value;

.....

Cash and Cpsh BEoulvalents, Actounts Recsivable, Aceounts Pavable and Other Current Liabilittes
{excludine Statutory Pavebles). Due to Sharmholders and Dividends Pavable

The carrying amounts of these financial instrumants approximate their fair valuss due to the shart-
term maturities of thess financial instrumsnis.

AFS Inyestment

The estimated fair value of AFS debt invesiment iz based on the discounted values of future cagh
fiows. The discount rates used ars based on the spot yield curve calculated from the markst yields
plus sounterparty®s eredit spread, The faic value is upder kevel 3 of the fair value hisrarchy,

The foliowing table below demonstrates the sensitivity of credit spread {through the impaston
other comprenensive ncome).

Increass
(Drecrease) in Effect on Equity
. Basis Points 2815 - 2014
AFS investment 50 #392,29%) (B655,026)
(503 614,393 681,848

TSR



5. Basie/Diluted Barnings (Loss) Per Share Computation

Basic/diluted EPS s sompured as follows:

2018 2014 2013

Net income attribptable to equity
holders () P635,193 B350,186 (B379,790)

Common shares issued at

beginning and end of year (b) 16,000 10,000 10,800
Bagic/diluted earnings (Joss) per :
share {afb} B63.52 835,02 - (B37.98)

The Company has no dllutwe: potential comimon shares outstanding therefors basic EPS is same as
diluted EPS,

¥4 kS
e e

16. Events affer the Reporting Date
On April 8, 2016, the Company’s BOD approved & cash distribution to PDR holders of 20,40 per
shars, in relation to dividends declared by GMA 1o all shareholders of record a8 at April 25 2016
and will be paid on May 17, 2016,

Qn the same date, the BOD approved a resolution fo pase on the entire amount of the cash

dividends reesived from (WA without deducting its operating expsnses and approved the use of
the interest income from is cash and cash equivalents and AFS investment 1o cover for these

SXDENSEs.

Furthar, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of cash dividends
amounting to #0.60 million to il stockbolders of record as at Aprll 29, 2016,

17, Supplemeniary Information Reguired by Revenue Regulztions (RR) 152810
BR 152010
The Company rapczrésd sdior paié the following types of taxes in 2015

Yalug addad Tax (VAT)

The Company’s sales are subject to output VAT whils its purchases from other VAT-registersd
individuals or corperations are subjsct to fnput VAT, The VAT rate is 12.0%.

a. Netsaleg/reosipts and output VAT declared in the Company’s VAT refurns

The Company’s sales that are subject to cutput VAT ars reported under “Exercise fee
seeount in the gtaternent of comprehensive income.

The Company’s texable sales from services amounted to B102,987 with corresponding output
VAT of 812,358,

MR AT



b, Input VAT
Balance at January | B347 686
Current year's domestic purchases for services 31,671
Total input VAT 378,357
Applied against output VAT (12,358
B366,59¢

Balance at December 31

Cther Taxes and Licenses

All other local and nationa! taxes paid for the year ended December 31, 2015 consist of!

Lagal taxes and license fees 210 882
Registraiion fees 500
220,382

e

Withhoiding Taxes

Withholding taxes paid and/or withheld for the year ended December 31, 2015 consist oft

Finai withholding tax B27.458,037
Expanded withholding tax 11,641 -
£77.469.678

" Tax Azsessments aud Cazes

As at Desernber 31, 2015, the Company hizs no ongoing tax assessments and cases with the

Bureay of Tnteraal Revenne (BIR). Likewise, the Company hes no other pending tax cases owiside

the adminisiration of the BIR as at Drecember 31, 20135,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directory
GMA BHoldings, Inc.

3D Tower Une, One McKinlsy Place

New Global Bonifscio City

Port Bonifaeio, Taguig City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financialstatdients of
GMA. Holdings, Inc, as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 =i for-esch of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2015 included in this Form {7-A, end have issusd our report therson dated

April §, 2016, Our audits wore made for the purposs of forming an opinion on the basic financisl
statements taken 25 & whole. The scheduiss listed in the Index fo Financia! Stuements and
Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the Company's management. Thesa schedules are
pressnted for purposes of complying with Seeurities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011},
and are not part of the basjc financial statements. These schedules have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our oplaion, fairly state, in all
material respects, the information required to be set forth therein in relation fo the basic financial

statements taken as & whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYC & CO.

Howzms He Boudare

Mariecris N, Barbaso

Fartner

CrA Certificate No., 87101

SRC Acoreditation No, 1513-4 (Group Aj,
Qoinber 6, 2015, valid until Odteber 5, 2018

Tax Identification No. 282-065-T16

BIR Accraditation No, (8-001998-108-2015,
Mareh 4, 2015, valid until March 3, 2018

FTR No. 5321611, Janpary 4, 2016, Makati City

April 8, 2016
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. GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

INDEX TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY

ot

IV,

SCHEDULES AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015

Supplaméntai Schedules Reguired by Annex 68-E
A. Financial Asssis

B. Amounts Reosivable from Direvtors, Officers, Bmployees, Related Parties
and Principal Btockholders (Cther Than Related Parties)

. Amounts of Receivables and Payeble from/to Related Parties which are
Elintinated durtng Consolidstion Process of Financial Statements

I, lmangibie Assets ~ Other Assels

E. Lon gwizém} Dbt

F, Ivdebtadnsss to Related Parties (Long-term Loans from Related Parties)
G, Guarsniess of Securitic; of D‘thsr Issuers

H. Capital Biock

Schedule of All the Effective Btandards and Interpretations

Reconciliation of Reizined Earnings Avellable for Dividend Declaration

Schedule of Financial Ratiog -

Attached

HNot applicable

ot applicable

ot applicable

" Not applicabie

Mot appiicable
Not applicabls
Attached
Attached
Attached

Aftached



GMA HOLDINGS, INC. |
I SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX 65-F
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015

Schedule A. Financial Assets

Aroount shown in
the statemnents of  Incoms recsived

Name of issulng antity end sssociation of each jssue Tingnoial position and accrued
Cash and vash squivalents : :

Cash on hand 5,000 P

Cash in banks! .

Union Bank of the Philippines 528,625 7,828

Deuvtsclie Bank ’ 103,068 1401

Banco De Oro 85,323 130

722,018 9,358

Cash equivalents ~Unisepital, Inc, . 26,124,523 Q14,748

B25,846,541 BO24,107

Avallable-for-sale investment BI0,8058,3523 81,138,750

icheduie B, Assonnts Receivable from Directors, (fficers, Employess; Related Farties and
Prineipat Stockheldars (Other Than Related Paries)

Deductinns
MNams mnd Balenne av ol - Amown Amouwn Bainpee g3 o)
desizgnation Januery 1, 2015 Additlons poliscted  writien off  Cuwrant  Noncoment Degember 31, 2015

“Neot Appiicable; The Company has no receivabis from directors, officer, employess, related partes and
principal stockholders as at December 31, 2015,

Schedule . Amounts of Recaivables and Payable fromfto Related Parties which are Ellminateg
during Conselidafion Process of Financial Statements

Deduciions
Narme ang Balupce 335 gt Amptmnl Aruoun: Balmnge g gf
designaion Japoary 1, 2015 Additipos vollected  writtenoff  Cwrent  Noawmeresd Drecember 31, 2015

Not Applicabie; The Comypany has no recetvable from/payeble to related partics which ars
consolidated as af December 31, 2015,

Schaduic D, [ntangible Assets - Other Assels

Other changes:

Beginning Chergad to cost . gaditions
Description balanes  Additions & cost and expenses {deductions) Ending balancs

Nat Apnlicehie: The Compsany has no intengdble asset as af December 31, 2015,




Sehednie E, Long-term Debt

Amount  Amount shown under caption Amount shown under
Title of issue and type of authorized  “Current portion of long term caption “Leng-ferm debt®
obligdtion by indenture  debt™ in related balance sheet in related balance sheet

Mot Applicable; The Cdmpany has no long-term debt as at Decernber 31, 2015,

Sehedule ¥, Indebtednass to Related Parties (Long-term Loans from Related Purtics)

i Ealance at Balance at
Nume of relsted party _ Japuary 1, 2015 December 31, 2015

Not Applicable: The Compeny has e indebtedness o a related party as af December 31, 2015,

Schedule G, Guarantees of Securities of Cther Isspers
e S

Nams of issuing entity of Titie of izsue of

Securities pusmentesd by the ezch olessof  Totalamount  Amoust owsed by
Company for which this securities  guaranteed and  person for which the Nature of
statement is filed ' pugranieed puistanding statement is fled guarantee

. Not Applicablet The Company hes no guarentess of seourities of other issuers asat
December 31, 2015,

Schedule H. Capital Stock

“Mumber of Number
sharey issied of shares
and  reserved for
‘guistanding options, -
‘a5 shown warrsnts, | Mumber
Mumber underrelsted  conversion of sheres held Direstore,
of sheres  balance shest and athsr by related  officers, and
Titie of issue authorized capton righis pariies employses Others
ConEnon 18,000 - 10,800 — -~ 0,581 5




GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

1L SCHEDULE OF ALL THE EFFECTIVE STANDARDS AND
- INTERPRETATIONE AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015

Prnmewurk for the Preparation and Prsenmtwn of Finaneigl
Sistements Y
Caogncepinal Framework Phese At Objectives and qualitative :
characteristios '
PFRSs Pructice Biafement Mappgement Commeniary e
Philippine Financlal Reperting Btandards
PERS 1 1 Firsi-time Adueption of Philippine Finencial Reporting , J
{Revissd) Standards v
Amendments 1o PFRS 1 and PAS 27 Cost of an
investment in & Subsidlary, Jojetly Controlied Bntity or | « 4 N
Asspciate L
Amendmams to PFES 1; Additional Exempfions for
R v v
First-time Adopters
Amentment o PFRS 1; Limied Exemption fom
Comperative PERS 7 Disclosures fi for Fiest-time v v
Adopters
Amendments i PFRS I Severe Hyp rinflation and v g
Removal of Fixad Date for First-ime Adonters
Asendments to PFRS 1) Government Lozns v ¢
Amendments to PFRS 1: Borrowing Casts S v
Amendment 0 PFRS 14 Meaning of Efective PFREs ¥ J
PRES 2 Share-hasad Payment ' N J
Amendments to PFRE 2 Vesting Conditions and " : J
Canceliations
Amendmenis to PFRE 2: Group Cash-settied Shore- E
. - g <
hased Payment Transactions:
| Amendment (o PFRS 2; Definition of Vosting v ¢
Condition .
PERS3 Business Combinations . g v
{Revized) Amendment fo PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent Y /
Consideration in 2 Business Combination :
Amendment 10 PFRS 3; Seope Exeeptions for Joint J s
ArangerneEnts
PFRS 4 imsuranee Contracts v g
Amemdments to PAE 35 aned PFRB 4: Financial < ' J
Gueraptee Conwacis |
PFRES Nop-current Assets Held for Saje and Discontinued 7 Y,
Qperations ) !




!A.menamants o PFRS 5! Changes < in Methods csf'
Disposals*

Mot Early Adopted

Explaration for and Bvaluation of Mineral Resourpes

PFRS 7

Financisl Instroments: Disclosures

I

Amenidments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification
of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassificaiion
of Financisl Assais « Effective Dats and Transition

Amendiients to PFFRS 7: Improving Disclosures shout
Financlal Instrumenis

Amendments lo PFRB 7; Disclogures - Transfers of
Finsncial Agsets :

Amendmants o PFRS 7: Diselosures - Gffsetting
Financtal Assets and Financia! LishiBties

Amendments to PFRS 7; Mandutory Bffective Duate of
PFRS 9 and Transliion Disclosures

Amendments 1o PERS 7: Disclosures - Servicing
Contracts®

Mot Barly Adopiad

Amsndments to PFRS 7: Applicability of the
Ameadments to PFRE 7 1o Condensed tntarim
Financial Statements®

Not Eaply Adapted

PFRS §

Operating Segments

Amendrments to PERS 8 Agrrogation of Operaiing
Begrments and Revonciliation of the Tatal of the
Reportabie Segments’ Assets to the Entity™s Asscts

v

V4

PFRE S

Financis! Instruments®

Not Early Adopted

Amendmens to PFRS & Mandstory Effective Date of
1PFRE ¢ and Trangition Disclosures®

Ngt Early Adopted

Amendments to PFRS & Hedge accounting snd -
pmendments to PFRE 8 and PAS 39 (2013 version)*

Not Earty Adopted

Amendments to PFRE 8 (2014 version}*

Noi Barly Adopted

Consolidated Finaocig! Stetements

Amendments o PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27:

{linvestment Entities

v

Amendments to FFRS 10 and PAS 28 Sale or
Contribulion of Assets batween an Isvestor and iz
Assoeitte or Joint Veniure® .

Not Early Adopted

Acnendments 1o PFRS 10 end PAS 28: Applying the
Consolidetion BException®

Mot Barly Adopted

f’ oint ArTangements

i |
f ]




Amendments 1o PFRS 11; Accounting for Acguisiilons
of Interasts in Joint Operatlons* {
T

‘PFRE 12

Dizclosure of Interssts in Other Entifies

Amendmaentt to PFRS 10, PFFRS 12 end PAR I7:
investment Entities |

PTRS 13

Fair Vaiue Messurement

‘Amendment to PFRE 13: Bhort-term Recelvabiss and
{ Payablas

Amemimegt to PFRI 13: Portielio Exception

FFRS 14

LLRagu]amry Deferral Accounts®

Not Early Adepted

FPhilippine Accennting Stundards

Ipagy
{Revised)

Presentation of Finencial Statements

Amendmont to PAS 1r Capiisl Disclosores

N

Armendments o PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puitable Finanols?
Ingtruments and Obligations Arising on Liguidation

Amendments {o PAS 11 Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Incomg

N

Amendments o PAS 13 Clarification of the
Reqguirements for Comparative Information

Amendments to PAS 1; Disclosurs lnitiatve*

HNot Barly Adopted

PASZ

Inventorias

i v

PAS 7

Statement of Cush Flows

PABS

Accounting Folicies, Changes in Accounting Estimatss
and Brrars '

n
ook
L]

Events after the Reporting Period

ot
R
ter | tn
"
ek

Construction Contracly

SO RN R

ol
>
(2]
P
1

Income Taxes

-~

Amendmentio PAS 12 - Deferred Thx: Racovery of
Underiying Asseis

&,

PAS 16

Property, Plant and Eguipnent

Amendments 1o PAS 18: ClessHication of servicing
eqwiprasnt . :

SRR

Amendrmen! to PAE 16 and PAS 38: Revalpation
Method -~ Proporitonaty Restatement of Acenmulated
Deprecistion/Amortization

| Amendments to PAS 16 and PASB 38; Clerification of
Acceptable Methods of Depresiation and Amortiz=iion*®

Nt Early Adopted

Amendments to PAS 16 snd PAS 41: Bearer Plants®

Nar Barly Adoptad

PAB Y

{Lesses

|




} and Financia! Lizbilities

PAS 18 Employee Benefils J‘_ v o
Amendmenss to PAS 19: Actuarisl Gains and Losses, | v .
Group Plans and Disclosures b
PAS 1D Ermmloyes Benefiis " Ng
£ £l - o "
(Amended) Amendments to PAS 19; Defined Benefit Plang P ¥
Employee Confribution ” ] !
Amendments 1o PAS T8 Regione] Markst Tssug » . ol
Regarding Discount Rag* Not Barly Adopted
PAS 20 Accouting for Government Grants and Disclosures of v v
Government Assisance
PAR 23 The Effects of Uhanges In Foraign Exchangs Rates J v
) Amendment: Net Invesiment in a Foreign Operation e v
PAS 23 Barowing Costs v /
{Revised) >
PAS 24 Reiated Party Disclosures '
Revised) Amendments 1o PAS 24; Key Manggsment Pessonnel v
PAR 26 tAzeounting snd Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plens v J
TAB 27 1Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements ¥ f
PAB 27 Scparate Financla! Siaigments S v i
(Amewded) |, endments o PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27 , .
Investnen! Entities * :
@msm{mefts o PAR 3?: Equity Method in 8eparats Not Hasly Adopted
Financial Btatements®
PAS I8 Investments In Assosiales N v
PAS 28 Investments in Assoolales and Joint Venturss s v
| {Amended) Amendments o PFRE 10 and PAS 26: Sale or ]
i Contribution of Assets between an Invesior and its ot Barly Adapted
Assosiate or foint Yeniure® _
Amentments to PFRS 10 end PAS 28: Applying the NoiE
e g . - of Earty Adopted
Consolidation Exception™ ot P
PAS 25 | Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Evonomias Ng Ve
PAE 31 interasts in Joint Venmres v v
PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Fresentation o
Amendiments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Putiable Finanofef Py y
Instruments snd Obligations Arising on Liguidation
Amendment to PAS 32: Classificasion of Rights Issaes v v
| Amendments to PAS 3% Offsetting Financial Asgseis Y 7
g i




£ " =LaeAnt S §
Amendments t0 PAS 32: Tax effect of dlstribution to

PAR 48

Investmernt Property

holders of sguity instruments v s
PASR 33 Earnings per Shers N
PAE 34 Interim Financial Reporting J
Amendments 1o PAE 34 Interim finaneial reporting and ‘ ,
segment information for total assels and Habilities ¢ v
Amentments 1o PAS 34: Disclosure of Informetion e eaed
*Bisewhere in the Fwverim Financlal Report™ Not Early Adopied
PAB 36 Impalment of Asstls v I
Amendments o PAS 36 Recoverable Amonnt . I J
Diselosuras for Nop-Financial Assets
PAS 37 Provisione, Coniingent Liabiiitijas a‘r{d Ca’*‘:‘%mgcm v y
Aszels . b ;
PAR 3B Intangible Assets v J
Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Revaluation
nethed - Proportionate Restatement of Acounulated J v
Amortization
Amendments to PAR 16 and PAS 38: Clarification of N
- - - ot Barly Adopied
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amertization® v Adap
PAR39  |Fimanctal instruments: Recognifion snd Mersursment v
Amentments to PAB 3%; Transltion and Inlial
Reeognition of Fiprucial Assets snd Financiel s
Linbilittes
Amendments to PAS 39 Cash Flow Hetpgs Accounting v v
of Forecast Infragroup Transaalions '
| amendments to PAB 39; The Fair Valug Opfion v ¢ ‘
3
Amendments 1o PAS 3% and PFRS 4 Finangial J y
Guarantse Contracts
Amendments fo PAS 39 snd PFRR 73 Reclassifeation y Y
of Finaneis! Assely
Amendments to PAS 39 znd PFRS 7; Reclassificatios y "
of Financial Assets - Effective Date angd Transition
Amendments to Philipping Interpretation IFRIC ¢ apd P Y
PASR 3% Embeodded Dertvatives °
Amendment io PAS 39: Eligibls Hedged tems v v
Amendments 1o PAS 3% Novation of Derfvatives and ) J v
Continuation of Hedpe Acoouiting
. - y




JIFRIC 21

Levies

Amanamants gl PAS 40 Clarifying e .
Intgrrelationship batween FFRS 3 end PAS 40 when / v
Classifying Property as Investment Properiy or Owner- ¥
Oaeupied Property |
PAS 41 Agrioalture v o Y,
Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41+ Bearer Planis* Mot Earty Adopted
Philippine Interpretations ' |
EFRICT Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and , /
Birniler Liabifities v
IFRIC2 Members' Share in Co-aperative Entities and Similar Y v
Instruments
IFRIC 4 Determining Whetber an Arrsngement Containg a Lease v EA "
IFRIC S, Rights to Interests arising fram Decommissioning, y Y,
Restoration and Environmental Rebabilitation Funds
IFRIC 6 Liubifitiss arising fram Participating In e Specific ;
Merket - Waste Elecirice! and Elecironic Equipment ¥
IFRIC 7 Appiying the Restatement Approsch under PAS 29 N4 N
Financial Reporting In Hyperinflationzey Economies
IWRICS  |Scopeof PFRS 2 ' v N
IFRICS Reassessment of Bmbedded Derivatives S s
Amendments ta Philippine Interpratation IF RI"‘ 8 and Y ‘ /-
FAS 3%: Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 18 Interim Financlal Reporting and bnpairment 4 v
IFRIC 11 PFRY 2. Uroup and Treasury Share Transactions i v
IFRIC 12 arvice Coneestion Arrengements W v
IFRIC I3 Customer Loyalty Programnes s v
IFRIC i34 The Limir en & Defined Bepefit Asset, Minimum p /
Funding Requirements and their fnteraction M ¢
Amendmants 1o Phifippine Intsrpretations IFRIC- 14, v g v
Prepayments of s Minimum Funding Reguirement |
IFRIC I3 Agreaments for the Coastruction of Real Estaie® Not Esriy Adepled
[ . I )
IFRIC 16 |Hedges of s Net lnvestment ip g Foreign Opersfion J | J
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assels. o Ownsrs v v
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assats from Customers J v
IFRIC 12 Extinguishing Financial Lisbilities with Equity J e
Instrumerits
IERIC 28 Stripping Costs 1o the Produciion Phase of & Surface . v
Mine
v i




Introduction of the Ewro e

B8 Govemnment Assistance - No Spectfic Relution io v
Operating Activitles

SKC-12 Consolidation - Spectal Purpose Entities v J
Amentdmant to 8IC - 12: Scope of SIC 12 < s

SIC-13 Jointly Controlied Entities - Non-Monstary v v
Contributions by Venturers

8iC-15 Opersling Lenses - Incentives s v

81028 Income Taxes ~ Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity ; J
or its Shercholders ’ ¢

e Evalusting the Subsiance of Transactions Inveiving the Y, Y
Legal Form of a Lease ‘

gI1C-28 Serviee Concession Arrangements; Diselosurss 7 v

BIC-31 Revenus —Barter Transactions Involving Advertising v N4
Bervicus

BIC-32 intengible Assets - Web Site Costs v N

* Standarts and Intterprewntions which wiff become effective subsequent to December 31, 2013,




GMA HOLDINGS, INC. . ‘

H, RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED FARIWNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2818

Uneppropriated retained sarningz, beginning £539,814
Net income during the year closed to retzined earpings 435,183
(300,000)

Dividend declaration during the year .
Retained earnings - available for dividend declaration as af December 31, 2015 P575,007




OMA BOLDINGS, INC,

I'v. SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL RATIOR
FOR THE YEARS ENDEU DECEMBER 31, 2615, 2014 and 2013

Besember 31
Finapcial Ratios Deseription 2035 2014
0.38 0.57

Current assets pver current Habilities

Currentliguidity ratio
Total assets over total equity

Asget to squity ratio 23.06 41.76

B2.08 46,76

Debt to equity ratio Tatal liahilities overtotal eguity
¥eary ended Deesmber
Finpneisl Raties Breseription 2015 2¢14 2813
Retwn on eguity  Net income over total eguity 109%  30%  {131%6)
- % 1% {1%;

Return on aaset Net income over tois) asssts
EBITDA margin  Esmings before interest, tax snd depreciaiion
and smortization over total revenue 49%  37% {11%)
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CERTIFICATION

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that in compliance with Article 9(B) of
the 1987 Philippine Constitution, none of the Directors,
Independent Directors and Officers of GMA Holdings, Inc. are
elected as public servants and or appointed in any government
agency, local or foreign, without authority of law.

APR 21 2016

Issued this day of 2016.

ROBERTO O. PAREL

Compliance Officer
GMA Holdings, Inc.



1, JAIME C. LAYA, Filipino, of legal age,
Mansion Condominium A. Afnaiz Avenue,

in accordance with law, do hereby declare that:

L.

2.

1 am an Independent

Director of GMA Holdings, Inc.;

CERTIFICATION OF INBEPENDENT DIRECTORS

and with office address at Suite 703 Midland
Makati City, after having been duly sworn to

1 am affiliated with the following companies or organizations:

Company/Organization

Position

Period of
Service

Philippine Trust Company (Phittrust Bank)

) ]
Chaipmanand | 2004-present

GMA Network, Inc. and
‘GMA Holdings, Inc.

Ayale Land, Inc.

Marila Water Company, Inc.

Philippine AXA Life Insurance Ce,, Ine.

Charter Ping An Insurance Corporation

CIBT Foundation, Inc.

Escuele Taller Foundation of the Philippines, Inc.

Don Norberte Ty Foundation, Ing. -
Cofradia de la Inmeoulada Concg) cidn
Heart Foundation of the Philippines, Ine.

President

Independent 2007-present

Director .

independent 2010-present

Director

Independent 2014-present

Director

Director 2005-prasent

Independent 2016~

Diregtor

Chalrmen 2013-present
.| Chairmen 2005-present

Trustee 1979-present

Trustee ca. 1985-present

Trustee 1998-present

Trustee 2002-present

St Paul University — QUeZon City
Fundacion Santiago, inc.

Culnral Center of the Philippines

| Metropolitan

Yuchengeo Museum
Society for Cultural Enrichment, Inc.

Avala Toundation, Inc. :

Manila Pelo Club

Tilipinas Opera Sgeiety

Various family corporations

NMuseumn of Manila

NIV ey

Foundation, Ine,

Trustee 2002-present
Trustee 2003-present

| Trustee ca, 2004-present

| Trustee <a, 2007-present |
Trusice 2009-presernt
Trustee 2013-present |
Director 2014-present
Trustee 2014-present

| Directot ca, 1960~-present

i
!
I




L

-1 poss

ess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of M4 Holdings, Inc., as provided for in-Section 38 of the
Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations.

I shall faithfully end diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
Independent Director ander the Securities Regulation Code. ‘

I shail inform the Corporate Secretary of GMA Holdings, Inc. of any changes in
the above-mentioned information within five (5) days from its occutrence. '

Done this 4% day of April two thousand and sixteen at Makati City.

\
7
JADMEGAAYA
(fiant '

MAKATI z::z%'v .
f April, two thousand and

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN fo before péﬁ ﬁl %@%g |
sixteen, at Makati City, affiant persenallyg? @hefore me and exhibited to me his

Passport No. EC3123777 issued at Manila on January 7, 2015.

Doc. No. &, ETAR
Page No. , ' o
Book No. 74 _ L
PR PPNT- T o .

Series of 2014 ' MCLE COBPLIARCE RO 1

Fecio 8, BATALLA
et .
s]isz%% %gﬁy}ﬁg LOITY
PO TMENT NOL 32
1 DECHVBER 43, 20%

b3 :};2;‘»‘%—?{9«2-5}".3
IBP 1R o FuG LI sAE RREREBER JAN. 39,3007
TR Mo, §33-3508- 23 125,200 16 SAARATIEITY
ENECUTIVE BLDEG, CEHTER
REAKAT] AVE., COR, JUBITER
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

and with office address at 1203 Acacia Street,

Dasmarifias Village, Makati City, after having been duly sworn to in aceo

I, ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN, Filipino, of legal age,

1.1 am an independent directdrgf GMA HOLDINGS, INC,;

2.1 am affilinted with the following listed companies or organizations:

rdance with law, do-hereby declare that:

Position/Relationship

Period of Service

Compsany/Organization
First Philippine Holdings Corporation Independent Director 2007 - present
Metro Pacific Investments Corporation Independent Director 2007 - present
GMA Network, Ine. Independent Director 2007 - present
Manila Electric Company Independent Director 2008 - present

Robinsons Land Corporation

Independent Director

2008 - present

Independent Director

2010 - present

Asian Terminals, Inc,

Petron Corporation

ladependent Director

2010 - present

Philippine Long Distance Telephone Co.

Jollibee Foods Corporation

tetropolitan Bank and Trust Company

Douhie Dragon Properties Corporation

Independent Director 2013 - present
~ Director 2012 - present
Senior Adviset 2007 - present

Adviser 2014 - present

Bank of the Philippine Islands

“Member, Advisory Council Apr. 13, 2016 - present

3.1 possess all the
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QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2)(b) THEREUNDER
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2. SEC Identification Number CS200602356

3. BIR Tax Identification No. 244-658-896-000

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter GMA Holdings. Inc.

w

. Philippines
Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation

6. ](SEC Use Only)

Industry Classification Code

7. Unit 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place,
New Bonifacio Global City. Fort Bonifacie.Taguig City 1694
Address of principal office Postal Code

8.(632)982-7777

Issuer’s telephone nmumber, including area code

9. Notapplicable .................o..oevo oy
Former name or former address, if changed since last report

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC and Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding and Amount of Debt
Qutstanding..................
Philippine Depositary Receipts (PDRs) 845,778,700 shares

11. Are any or all of the securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes [v] No [}

12. Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule 17
thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and
141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the preceding twelve (12) months (or
for such shorter period the registrant was required to file such reports)

Yes [v] No []

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

GMA Holdings, Inc. ended the first half of 2016 with a net income of 2293 thousand, equivalent to a
slight decrease of 9% from last year’s 320 thousand net income as a result of lower exercise fees
generated for the conversion of 570,400 PDR shares against 1.61 million PDR shares converted during
January to June of 2015.

Revenues for the first semester of 2016 registered a tad lower at 21.04 million versus last year’s 1.09
million brought about by less exercise fees amounting to 225 thousand from the conversion of 570,400
PDR shares versus 272 thousand for the 1.61 million PDR shares conversion in 2015. Moreover, interest
income slightly decreased to £1.01 million from last year’s 1.02 million due to lower interest income
earned on cash placement.

For the six months ended June 30, 2016, operating expenses concluded at P541 thousand vis-a-vis P568
thousand in 2015 mainly due to lower professional fees partly negated by higher listing fees and taxes and
licenses. This year’s professional fees decreased to P212 thousand versus P263 thousand in 2015, wherein
a fee was paid i previous year for the amendment of Articles of Incorporation (to show complete
address).

Listing fees for the first half of 2016 amounted to P307 thousand, an increase of 7% as compared with
P288 thousand in 2015 due to higher market cap. The P307 thousand unexpired portion of listing fee was
included under “Prepaid expenses and other current assets” in the statement of financial position.

Taxes and licenses representing amortization of local business tax for the first half of 2016 went up to P16
thousand from P10 thousand in comparative period due to higher tax base.

Financial Condition

Total assets as of June 30, 2016 amounted to P49.19 million, inching up by 2% from P48.22 million as of
end-2015 primarily due to the increase in the fair market value of available-for-sale investment, which
was estimated using the discounted cash flow method.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Company’s key performance indicators are focused on the dividends it receives to meet PDR
holders’ expectations and monitor cash and cash equivalents levels to meet its obligations with respect to
the Company’s current and preceding year’s operation.

KEY VARIABLE AND OTHER QUALITATIVE OR QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

a) Trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on the
issuer’s liquidity.

As of June 30, 2016, there were no known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that
will have a material impact on the issuer’s liquidity.



b)

<)

d)

g)

h)

Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the company,
mcluding any default or acceleration or an obligation.

As of June 30, 2016, there were no events which may trigger a direct or contingent financial
obligation that is material to the Company.

Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations),
and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during
the reporting period.

There were no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other persons
created as of June 30, 2016.

Material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such commitments afd the
expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

For the period January 1, 2016 to June 30, 2016, there were no commitments for capital expenditures.

Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

The Company’s results of operations depend largely on its ability to meet PDR holders’ expectations
from the dividends it receives and to monitor cash and cash equivalents levels to meet its obligations

‘with respect to the Company’s current and preceding year’s operation. As of June 30, 2016, there are

no known trends, events or uncertainties that are reasonably expected to have a material favorable or
unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

Any significant elements of income or loss that did arise from the issuer’s continuing operations.

As of June 30, 2016, there were no significant elements of income or loss that did arise from the
issuer’s continuing operations.

Causes for material changes in the Financial Statements.

Statements of Financial Position [June 30, 2016 (Unaudited) vs. December 31. 2015 (Audited)]

e Cash and cash equivalents decreased by £764 thousand to £26.08 million as a result of
payment of PSE listing fees and local business taxes.

e Current liabilities decreased by P57 thousand to £47.58 million due to lower payables to
govemment agencies.

Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of operations.

As of June 30, 2016, there are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition
or results of operations.



GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30,2016 December 31, 2015
Unaudited Audited
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6, 13 and 14) £26,082,764 P26,846,541
Accounts receivable (Notes 13 and 14) 184,387 199,515
Other current assets 781.474 366,999
Total Current Assets 27,048,625 27.413,055
Noncurrent Asset
Available-for-sale investment (Notes 7, 13 and 14) 22,143,347 20,805,523
£49.191,972 P48.218,578
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
(Notes 8, 13 and 14) £309,420 B366,179
Due to sharcholders (Notes 12, 13 and 14) 47,271,600 47,271,600
Income tax payable 98 269
Total Current Liabilities 47,581,118 47,638,048
Noncurrent Liability
Deferred income tax liability (Note 11) 401,347 -
Total Liabilities 47,982,465 47,638,048
Equity (Note 9)
Capital stock 100,000 100,000
Retained earnings 367,507 675,007
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale investment-
net of tax (Note 7) 742,000 (194,477)
Total Equity 1,209,507 580,530
£49.191.972 P48.218,578

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2nd Quarter Ended June 30 Six Months Ended June 30
2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014
REVENUES
Interest income (Notes 6 and 7) 510,360 574,545 292,116 1,010,345 1,022,444 578229
Exercise fees (Note 5) 4,897 6,683 - 25,464 72,085 -
515,257 581,228 292,116 1,035,809 1,094,529 578229
OPERATING EXPENSES
(Note 10) 209,612 309,583 277,927 540,731 568,108 549565
INCOME BEFORE INCOME
TAX 245,645 271,645 14,189 495,078 526,421 28,664
PROVISION FOR INCOME
TAX (Note 11)
Current 98 1,442 - 509 1,442 -
Final 102.072 159,722 58,423 202,069 204,489 115,646
102,176 161,164 58,423 202,578 205,931 115,646
NET INCOME (LOSS) 143,475 110,481  (44.234) 292 500 320,490  (86,982)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS)
Items to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent
periods -
Unrealized gain (loss) on
available-for-sale investment
- net of tax (Note 7) 923.213 (169,116) - 936,477 {456,552) -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS) 1,066,688 (58,635) (44.234) 1,228,977 (136,062)  (86,982)
Basic/Diluted Earnings (Loss)
Per Share (Note 15) 1435 11.05 (4.42) 29.25 32.05 (8.7)

See accompanying Notes io Financial Statements.



GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Unrealized Gain on

Capital Retained Available-for-sale
Stock Earnings Investment - Net of Total
(Note 9) (Note 9) Tax (Note 7) Equity
Balances as at January 1, 2016 100,000 675,007 (194.477) 580,530
Net income - 292,500 - 292,500
Other comprehensive income - - 936,477 936,477
Total comprehensive income - 292,500 936,477 1,228,977
Cash dividends (Note 9) - {600,000) - (600,000)
Balances as at June 30, 2016 100,600 367,507 742,000 1,209,507
Balances as at January 1, 2015 100,000 539,814 531,451 1,171.265
Net income - 320,490 - 320,490
Other comprehensive income (Joss) - - (456,552) (456,552)
Total comprehensive income (loss) - 320,490 (456,552) (136,062)
Cash dividends (Note 9) - (500,000) - (500,000)
Balances as at June 30, 2015 100,000 360,304 74,899 535,203
Balances as at January 1, 2014 100,000 189,628 - 289,628
Net loss - (86,982) - (86.982)
Balances as at June 30, 2014 100,000 102,646 - 202,646

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



GMA HOLDING INC.

UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2nd Quarter Ended June 30 Six Months Ended June 30
2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax 245,647 271,645 14,189 495,078 526,421 28,664
Non-cash adjustments to reconcile
income before income tax to net
cash flows:
Interest income (Notes 6 and 7) (510,361) (574.545) (292,116) (1,010,345) (1,022,444 (5678,229)
Working capital adjustments: )
Decreases (Increases) in:
Accounts receivable (5,485) (7485) 80,630 (1,729) (80,736) 80,630
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets 143393 142,963 181,398 (414 ,475) (418,297) (516,050)
Increase (Decrease) in
accounts payable and .
accrued expenses (163,771) (11,796) (45.591) (56,930) 86,888 (559,525)
Net cash used in operating
activities {290,577y (179.218) (61,490) (988,401) (908,168) (1,544,510)
Interest received 451,767 642,154 370,398 1,027,202 1,037,855 598,294
Income and final taxes paid (102,17%) (161,165) (58.,423) (202,578) (205,931) (115,646)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities 59,019 301,771 250485 (163.777) (76,244)  (1,061.862)
CASH FLOW FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITY
Payment of cash dividends (600,000) - - (600,000) - -
NET INCRESE (DECREASE)
IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (540,981) 301,771 250,485 (763,777) (76,244)  (1,061,862)
CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF
PERIOD 26,623,745 26287206 46617641 26,846,541 26,665,221  47.,929.988
CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF PERIOD
(Note 6, 13 and 14) 26,082,764 26,588,977 46,868,126 26,082,764 26,588,977 46,868,126

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statenients.



GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Corporate Information

GMA Holdings, Inc. (the Company) is incorporated in the Philippines to invest in, purchase or
otherwise acquire and own, hold, use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange or otherwise
dispose real and personal property of every kind and description. The registered office address of the
Company is 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New Global Bonifacio City, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City. The Company was registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on
February 15, 2006.

The accounting and administrative functions of the Company are undertaken by GMA Network, Inc.
(GMA), an affiliate.

In 2007, the Company issued Philippine Deposit Receipts (PDRs), which were listed and traded in
The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE) (see Note 5).

The Company will not engage in any business or purpose other than in connection with the issuance
of the PDRs, the performance of the obligations under the PDRs and the acquisition and holding of
the underlying shares of GMA in respect of the PDRs issued. This includes maintaining the
Company’s listing with the PSE and maintaining its status as a Philippine person for as long as the
Philippine law prohibits ownership of GMA’s shares by non-Philippine person.

No reportable segment information is presented as the Company’s limited operations are adequately
presented in the statements of comprehensive mcome.

Basis of Preparation and Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

Basis of Preparation
The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial

Reporting Standards (PFRS).

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
available-for-sale (AFS) investment, which is measured at fair value. The financial statements are
presented in Philippine peso, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. All
values are rounded to the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of following amendments and improvements to PFRS and Philippine Accounting
Standards (PAS) which the Company adopted during the year:

= PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures - Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception.

= PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations.

= PFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Account.



PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Disclosure Initiative:

PAS 16and PAS 41, dgriculture - Bearer Plants. PAS 41, Agriculture. For government grants

related to bearer plants, PAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of

Government Assistance, will apply.

PAS 16and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and

Amortization.

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements.

Annual Improvements to PFRS (2012-2014 cycle)

®  PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in
Methods of Disposal.

= PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Servicing Contracts.

= PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial
Statements.

= PAS 19, Employee Benefits- Regional Market Issue Regarding Discount Rate.

= PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of Information ‘Elsewhere in the Interim
Financial Report’.

The adoption of these standards did not have any impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Future Chanees in Accounting Policies

The Company will adopt the following PFRS when these become effective. Except as otherwise
indicated, the Company does not expect the adoption of these new and amended PFRS to have a
significant impact on its financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2018

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments. In July 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) issued the final version of Intemational Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 9, Financial
Instruments. The new standard (renamed PFRS 9) reflects all phases of the financial mstruments
project and replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all
previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application
is required, but providing comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the
requirements are generally applied prospectively, with some limited exceptions. Early application
of previous versions of PFRS 9 (2009, 2010 and 2013) is permitted if the date of initial
application is before February 1, 2015.

IFRS 153, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 by the IASB
and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and
recognizing revenue.

The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under IFRS. Fither a full or modified retrospective application is
required for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Early adoption permitted.



Effective January 1, 2019

®  IFRS 16.Leases. On Janvary 13, 2016, the IASB issued its new standard, IFRS 16, Leases, which
replaces International Accounting Standard (IAS) 17, the current leases standard, and the related
Interpretations.

Under the new standard, lessees will no longer classify their leases as either operating or finance
leases in accordance with IAS 17. Rather, lessees will apply the single-asset model. Under this
model, lessees will recognize the assets and related liabilities for most leases on their balance
sheets, and subsequently, will depreciate the lease assets and recognize interest on the lease
liabilities mn profit or loss. Leases with a term of 12 months or less or for which the underlying
asset is of low value are exempted from these requirements.

The accounting by lessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward the
principles of lessor accounting under IAS 17. Lessors, however, will be required to disclose more
information in their financial statements, particularly on the risk exposure to residual value.

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. Entities
may early adopt IFRS 16 but only if they have also adopted IFRS 15. When adopting IFRS 16, an
entity is pemmitted to use either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach, with
options to use certain transition reliefs.

With Deferred Effective Date

= Philippine Intetpretation from International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee 15,
Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate. This interpretation covers accounting for revenue
and associated expenses by entities that undertake the construction of real estate directly or
through subcontractors. The interpretation requires that revenue on construction of real estate be
recognized only upon completion, except when contract to be accounted for under PAS 11,
Construction Contracts, or involves rendering of services in which case, revenue is recognized
based on stage of completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the construction
materials and where the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to buyer on a continuous
basis will also be accounted for based on stage of completion. The SEC and the Financial
Reporting Standards Council have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the final
revenue standard is issued by the IASB and an evaluation of the requirements of the final revenue
standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is completed.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Current versus Noncurrent Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on
current/noncurrent classification.

An asset as current when 1t is:

= Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
= Ield primarily for the purpose of trading;



= Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
= Cashand cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is current when:

= It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

= It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

= Jtis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

= There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other assets and liabilities as noncurrent.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the estimated price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

= in the principal market for the asset or liability; or
= in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best
economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs

and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Company’s financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

s Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

= Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and



* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and habilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting date.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non-recurring fair value
measurements. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of
assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy.

Details as to how the fair value of assets and liabilities are measured are provided in Note 14.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity and a financial liability or equity instruments of another entity.

Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the
statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
mstrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the
trade date, 1.¢. the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
(HTM) investments, AFS investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the
case of financial assets not recorded at FVPL, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets.

Financial hiabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and
borrowings, pavables, or as derivatives designated as hedging mstruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company has no financial asset and financial liabilities at FVPL, HTM investments and
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge as at June 30, 2016 and
December 31, 2015.

Subsequent Measurement. The subsequent measurement of financial assets and liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or



premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization and
the losses arising from impairment are recognized in profit or loss.

This category includes cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable.

AFS Investments. AFS financial assets include equity investments and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as AFS are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at
FVPL. Debt securities in this category are those that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and that may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market
conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealized gains or losses recognized in OCI and credited in the AFS reserve until the investment is
derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income, or the investment is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative loss is
reclassified from the AFS reserve to the statement of comprehensive income. Interest earned whilst
holding AFS financial assets is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

The Company’s AFS investment as at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 consists of unquoted
debt securities.

Other Financial Liabilities. This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held for trading
or not designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability. These include liabilities arising from
operations or borrowings. Other financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are
subsequently carried at amortized cost, taking into account the impact of applying the EIR method of
amortization (or accretion) for any related premium, discount and any directly attributable transaction
costs. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amortization process.

This category includes accounts payable and other current liabilities (excluding statutory payables),
due to sharcholders and dividends payable.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Asset. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of
financial position) when:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

= the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred contro! of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of



the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred
asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also
recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred assets is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Company could be required to repay.

Under the “pass-through” test, the Company is deemed to have transferred substantially the risks and
rewards of the related investment in GMA. Accordingly, the investment in GMA and the related PDR
liabilities have been derecognized under PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement (see Note 5).

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists of one or more events that occurred since the initial recognition of the
asset {(an incurred loss event), has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or a group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. The Company first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not mdividually significant. If the Company determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that
group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are no longer
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR.



The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and ali collateral has been realized or has been
transferred to the Company. If; in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to interest expense in profit or loss.

AFS Investments. For AFS financial assets, the Company assesses at each reporting date whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS, the impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets cartied at amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is
the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in profit or loss.

Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset,
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. The interest is recorded as part of interest income. If, in a subsequent year, the fair
value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss.

‘Day I Difference’. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value
based on other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the
difference between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1 difference’) in profit or loss unless it
qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where unobservable data is used, the
difference between the transaction price and model value is recognized in profit or Joss only when the
inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1 difference’ amount.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the habilities
simultaneously, The Company assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if the right is
not contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of
default, and event of insolvency or bankruptey of the Company and all of the counterparties.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less
from dates of placement and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.



Other Current Assets

Other current assets includes prepaid taxes which represents prior year’s excess tax credits from taxes
withheld which are deductible from the Company’s income tax payable, and input value-added tax
(VAT).

Equity

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs incurred directly
attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of
tax. Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received in excess of par value are recognized as
additional paid-in capital.

Revenue

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The Company assesses its
revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent.
The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all its revenue arrangements. The
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Interest Income. Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the effective yield
on the asset.

Exercise Fees. Revenue 1s recognized upon conversion of PDRs to common shares.

Expenses

Expenses presented as “Operating expenses” account in the statements of comprehensive income are
recognized as incurred.

Taxes

Current Income Tax. Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted at reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in
profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred Income Tax. Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on all
temporary differences at reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.



Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward
benefits of excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT)
and net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward benefits of
excess MCIT ever RCIT and NOLCO can be utilized except:

®  where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor taxable profit or loss;
and

= in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interest in joint arrangements, deferred income tax assets are recognized only to
the extent-that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable income will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profit will allow the deferred income tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

= Where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset
or lability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

= Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates applicable to the year when the
asset is realized or the liability 1s settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been to be enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred income taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Income tax relating to OCI is recognized in OCI section of the statements of comprehensive income.

Value Added Tax (VAT). Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT. The
net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
“Other current assets” or “Accounts payable and other current liabilities” accounts in the statements

of financial position.



Eamings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing net income for the year by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The Company has no dilutive potential
comunon shares outstanding, therefore, basic EPS is the same as dilated EPS.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) where, as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of assets embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If
the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Where the
Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but
only when the receipt of the reimburserment is virtually certain.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed in the notes
to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in the
notes to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s position at the
reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

Summary of Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the Company to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be determinable under the circumstances.

The key estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below. The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments however, may



change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when these occur.

Determining Fair Value of AFS Investment. The Company has no intention of selling its AFS
investment in the near term. It is being held indefinitely and may be sold in response to hiquidity
requirements or changes in market condition.

The Company carries AFS investment at fair value. Since AFS investment cannot be derived from
active markets, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation technique, which is
discounted cash flow methodology. The inputs to the model are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair value.

The fair value of AFS investment is discussed in Note 14.

Impairment of AFS Investment. The Company follows the guidance of PAS 39 to determine when an
available-for-sale investment is impaired. Judgment by management is required in the estimation of
the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining if allowance is required. Such estimates
are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ. Allowance may be
based on any deterioration in the internal rating of the investment since it was acquired. These
internal ratings take into consideration factors such as any deterioration in risk, industry, and the
financial health and near-term business outlook of the issuer, as well as identified structural
weaknesses or deterioration in cash flows.

There was no provision for impairment losses as of June 30, 2016 and 2015. The carrying value of
AFS investment amounted to £22.14 million and 220.81 million as at Jane 30, 2016 and December

31,2015, respectively (see Note 7).

Estimating Realizability of Deferred Income Tax Assets. The Company’s assessment on the
recognition of deferred mecome tax assets on nondeductible temporary differences and carryforward
benefits of NOLCO and excess MCIT is based upon the likely timing and level of forecasted taxable
income in the subsequent periods. This forecast is based on the Company’s future expectations on
revenue and expenses.

The Company did not recognize deferred income tax assets as at June 30, 2016 and December 31,
2015, respectively as management believes that sufficient taxable profit will not be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized (see Note 11).

Philippine Deposit Receipts

On July 30, 2007 and August 21, 2007, the Company issued 822,115,000 and 123,317,000 PDRs
relating to GMA shares, respectively. Total number.of issued PDRs is 945,432,000 fora
consideration of £8.50 per share or £8,036,172,000.

Each PDR grants the holders, upon payment of the exércise price and subject to certain other
conditions, the delivery of one GMA share or the sale of and delivery of the proceeds of such sale of
one GMA share. The Company remains to be the registered owner of the GMA shares covered by the
PDRs. The Company also retains the voting rights over the GMA shares.



The GMA shares are still subject to ownership restrictions on shares of corporations engaged in mass
media and GMA may reject the transfer of shares to persons other than Philippine nationals. The
PDRs were listed in the PSE on July 30, 2007, and the same may be exercised at any time from said
date. Any cash dividends or other cash distributions in respect of GMA shares received by the
Company shall be applied toward the operating expenses of the Company for the current and
preceding years. A further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year shall be set
aside to meet operating or other expenses for the succeeding years. Any amount in excess of the
aggregate of the operating expenses paid and the operating fund for such period shall be distributed to
PDR holders pro-rata on the first business day after such cash dividends are received.by the
Company.

Upon exercise of the PDRs, an exercise price of £0.05 (VAT inclusive) per share shall be paid by the
PDR holders. The exercise price is shown as “Exercise fees” account in the statements of profit or
loss. Exercise fees amounted to £0.03 million, 0.07 million and nil for the six-month period ended
June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Immediately prior to the closing of the PDR offering and additional issuances described above, GMA,
to which the Company is affiliated, transferred 945,432,000 GMA shares to the Company in relation
to which the PDRs were issued. For as Jong as the PDRs are not exercised, the shares underlying the
PDRs will continue to be registered in the name of, and owned by the Company, and all rights
pertaining to these shares, including voting rights, shall be exercised by the Company. The
obligations of the Company to deliver the GMA shares on exercise of the right contained in the PDRs
are secured by the Pledge of Shares in favor of the Pledge Trustee acting on behalf of each holder of a

PDR over the GMA shares.

At any time after the PDR offering, a shareholder may, at his option and from time to time, deliver
shares to the Company in exchange for an equal number of PDRs. The exchange is based on
prevailing traded value of GMA shares at the time of transaction with the corresponding PDR option

price.

As discussed above, the Company retains the rights to receive the cash flows from its investment in
GMA and assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to the PDR holders, net of
operating expenses (a “pass-through” arrangement). The “pass-through” test is met because the
Company (a) has no obligation to the PDR holders unless it collects equivalent amounts from its
investment i GMA, (b) is contractually prohibited from selling or pledging its investment in GMA
other than as security to the PDR holders for the obligation to pay the cash flows, and (¢) has an
obligation to remit any cash flows from the investment in GMA to the PDR holders without material

delay.

Under the “pass-through” test, the Company is deemed to have transferred substantially the risks and
rewards of its investment in GMA. Accordingly, the investment in GMA and the liabilities related to

Rt}

the issuance of the PDRs are not recognized by the Company.



The following are the details and movements of the PDRs and the underlying GMA shares for the six
months ended June 30:

PDRs Number of Shares

2016 2015 2016 2015
Balance at beginning .
of year £7,193,967,350 £7,210.932,500 846,349,100 348,345,000
Exercise of PDRs (4,848,400) (13,724,950) (570,400) (1,614,700)
Balance at end of year £7,189,118,950 $7,197,207.550 845,778,700  846,730.300

On April 8, 2016, the Company’s BOD approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of 20.40 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA to all shareholders of record as at April 25,2016. On
the same date, the BOD approved a resolution to pass on the entire amount of the cash dividends
received from GMA without deducting its operating expenses and approved the use of the interest
income from its cash and cash equivalents and AFS investment to cover for these expenses. The cash
dividends were remitted to PRD holders on May 17, 2016.

On March 30, 2015, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of £0.25 per share, in
relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to 211.75 million to all shareholders of record as at
April 24,2015. On April 17, 2015, the BOD approved a resolution to pass on the entire amount of the
cash dividends received from GMA without deducting the Company’s 2015 projected operating
expenses. Such expenses shall be covered by the interest income from the Company’s cash and cash
equivalents and AFS investment. The cash dividends were remitted to PDR holders on May 19, 2015.

The Company retains the right to receive cash flows from its investments in GMA but it also assumes
a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to the PDR holders which is considered a “pass-
through” arrangement. Thus, the Company did not recognize the dividend income received from
GMA arising from the acquisition and holding of the underlying shares of GMA in its financial
statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

June 30,2016 December 31, 2015

Unaudited Audited

Cash on hand and in banks £1.,087.061 2722018
Short-term deposits 24,995,703 26,124,523
226,082,764 £26.846,541

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Interest income earned from cash in banks and short-term deposits amounted to 0 .45 million,
P0 46 million, and 20.58 million for the six-month period ended June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014,

respectively.



7. Available-for-Sale Investment

In 2014, the Company purchased at par a ten-year UBP Tier Note with a face value of
$21.00 million bearing a fixed interest rate of 5.38%. The maturity date of this note is on February

20,2025.

Interest income earned on the UBP Tier II Note amounted to 20.56 million, 20.56 million and nil for
the six-month period ended June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The movement in AFS mvestment is as follows:

June 30,2016 December 31, 2015

Unaudited Audited

Balance at beginning of year $20,805,523 P21,759.216
Change in fair value 1,337,824 (953,693)
Balance at end of period $22,143,347 20,805,523

Movement of net unrealized gain (loss) on AFS investment is as follows:

June 30, 2016 December 31, 2015

Unaudited Audited

Balance at beginning of vear (F194,477) P331,451]
Gain (loss) due to changes in fair market value .
of AFS investment 1,337,824 (953,693)
Tax effect of the changes in fair market values (401.,347) 227,765
Balance at end of period $742.,000 (P194.477)

8. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities

June 30, 2016 December 31, 2015

Unaudited Audited

Accounts payable P9.241 8,881

Accrued expenses:

Professional and trust fees 292,045 350,000
Others 2,461 2,261
Output VAT 2,870 -
Deferred output VAT 2,803 2,618
Dividends payable - 2419
P309420 £366,179

Accounts payable and accrued expenses are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled within the
next financial year. Accrued expenses represent audit fees, retainer fees and miscellaneous expenses.



9. Equity
a. Capital Stock

The Company has 10,000 authorized, subscribed and issued common shares with 210.00 par
value per share.

The following summarizes the information on the Company’s registration of securities with the
SEC as required by Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011):

Authorized Number
Number of Issued Issue/
Date of SEC Approval of Shares Shares Offer Price
July 30, 2007 945,432,000 945,432,000 £8.50

b. Retained Earnings

On April 8, 2016, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of cash
dividends amounting to £0.60 million to all stockholders of record as at April 29, 2016.

On March 30, 2013, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of cash
dividends amounting to £0.50 million to all stockholders of record as at December 31, 2014.

10. Operating Expenses

The components of the company’s operating expenses for the six-month period ended June 30, 2016,
2015 and 2014 are as follows:

2016 2015 2014

Listing fees P307,032 P288.023 P345,148
Professional fees 212,045 263,245 157,500
Taxes and licenses 15,755 10,191 21,394
Transportation 1,430 393 -
PDR conversion expenses 1,069 2,116 -
Miscellaneous 3,400 4,140 25,523
$540,731 P568,108 P549,565

11. Income Taxes

The components of the Company’s provision for current income tax for the six-month period ended
June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

2016 2015 2014
Final tax interest £202,069 £204,489 P115,646
MCIT 509 1,442

P202,578 £205,931 P115.646




In 2015, deferred income tax asset amounting to £0.23 million was partially recognized to offset
against deferred income tax liability of the same amount arising from unrealized gain on AFS
mvestment. As at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, deferred income tax Lability amounting to
20.40 million and nil, respectively, is presented under noncurrent liability in the statements of
financial position.

12.

Related Party Disclosures

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly and indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control.

Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Related Parties

Transactions with related parties have been entered into at terms no less favorable than could have
been obtained if the transactions were entered into with unrelated parties. In first semester of 2016
and as at December 31, 2015, no transactions have been entered into by the Company with its related

parties:

Year  Amount/Volume Due to Shareholders Terms Conditions
Category of Transactions
Shareholders
Portion of proceeds retained 2016 B P47,271,600 Upon demand, non- Unsecured,
from issuance of PDRs 2015 - 47271600 interest bearing  settled in cash

The outstanding balance of “Due to sharcholders”™ account in the statements of financial position
pertains to £0.05per PDR portion of the original proceeds retained by the Company, as the PDR
issuer, in consideration for the rights granted under the PDRs. This amount will be used for the
liquidation of expenses related to the issuance of the PDRs. Any excess is to be remitted to the selling
shareholders.

The Company’s key management personnel are employed by GMA and no part of their salaries was
allocated to the Company.

13.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company’s principal financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents and AFS
investment. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Company’s operations.
The Company has other financial assets and liabilities such as accounts receivable, accounts payable
and other current liabilities (excluding statutory payables) and due to shareholders, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial statements are as follows:

= Liguidity risk. Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Company may encounter
difficulties in raising funds to meet commitments from financial instruments.

= [nterest rate risk. Fixed rate financial instrument is subject to fair value interest rate risk.

= Credit risk. Credit risk arises from default of the counterparty.



The BOD reviews and approves the Company’s objectives and policies.

Liguidity Risk
The Company’s objective in liquidity management is to ensure that the Company has sufficient
liquidity to meet obligations under normal and adverse circumstances and is able to take advantage of

mvestment opportunities as they arise.

The Company manages its liquidity risk by using its cash and cash equivalents from operations and
interest income from AFS investment to meet its short-term liquidity needs. The Company likewise
regularly evaluates other financing instruments and arrangements to broaden the Company’s range of
financing sources.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets used for liquidity
risk management purposes and financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments as at
June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015:

As at June 30, 2016 (Unaudited)
More than
On Demand 3 to 12 Months 1 year Total

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents £26,082,764 P P- P26,082,764
Accounts receivable - 175,007 9,380 184387
AFS investment - - 22,143,347 22,143 347
, P26,082,764 B175,007 P22152,727 PB48.410,498
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and other
current liabilities* £303,747 o o £303,747
Due to shareholders 47,271,600 — — 47271,600
£47,575,347 B- B-  P47575347

*Excluding deferred output VAT and VAT payable amounting to 5,673 as at June 30, 2016.

As at December 31, 2015 (Audited)

More than
On Demand 3 to 12 Months 1 year Total
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents P26,846,541 B B B26,846,541
Accounts receivable - 190,135 9,380 199,515
AFS investment - - 20,805,523 20,805,523
£26,846,541 2190,135  P20,814,903 247851579
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and other
current liabilities* B363,561 P B 363,561
Due to shareholders 47,271,600 - - 47.271,600
R47,635,161 P B~  P47,635,161

*Excluding deferred output VAT amounting to P2,618 as at December 31, 201 5.



Interest Rate Risk
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Company’s AFS investment which is subject to fair value interest rate risk.

Fair Value Interest Rate Risk. Fixed rate financial instruments are subject to this risk. The Company’s
AFS investment eamns interest at a fixed rate of 5.38% throughout the period of investment.

The following table below demonstrates the sensitivity of fair value changes due to possible change in
interest rates with all other variables held constant (through the impact on other comprehensive
income}.

Increase (Decrease) in Effect on Equity
Basis Points June 30,2016 December 31, 2015
AFS mvestment 50 B245,074) (R931,494)
(50) 1,253,819 577,078

Credit Risk

Credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents and AFS investment, the Company’s exposure to
credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amount of the instruments. It is the Company’s policy to enter into transactions with a diversity of
creditworthy parties to mitigate any significant concentration of credit risk. The Company has an
internal mechanism to monitor the granting of credit and management of credit exposures. The
Company has made provisions, where necessary, for potential losses on credits extended. The
Company does not require any collateral for its financial assets.

As at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the financial assets are generally viewed by
management as good and collectible considering the credit history of the counterparties. Past due or
mmpaired financial assets are very minimal in relation to the Company’s total financial assets.

Credit Quality of Financial Assets
The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Company using high grade and standard grade
as internal credit ratings.

High Grade. This pertains to a counterparty who is not expected by the Company to default in settling
its obligations, thus, credit risk exposure is minimal. This normally includes large prime financial
institutions and rejated parties.

Standard Grade. Other financial assets not classified as high grade are included in this category.

The Company classified its cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand) and AFS investment
as high grade financial assets as at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015,

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize sharcholder
value.




The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in the light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, payoff existing debts, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes as at June 30, 2016 and for the two
years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

The Company’s capital management is undertaken by GMA. The Company’s capital includes the
total equity, before other comprehensive income, which amounted to 20.47 million and 20,78 million
as at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.

14.

Financial Assets and Liabilities

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each financial
mstrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Accounts Receivable. Accounts Pavable and Other Current Liabilities

{excluding Statutory Pavables) and Due to Shareholders
The carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximate their fair values due to the short-
term maturities of these financial instruments.

AFS Investment

The estimated fair value of AFS debt investment is based on the discounted values of future cash
flows. The discount rates used are based on the spot yield curve calculated from the market yields
plus counterparty’s credit spread. The fair value is under level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The following table below demonstrates the sensitivity of credit spread (through the impact on other
comprehensive income).

Increase (Decrease) Effect on Equity
in Basis Points — jupe 30,2016  December 31,2015

AFS investment 50 (B588,948) {#592,292)
(50) 610,009 614,393

15.

Basic/Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share Computation

Basic/diluted EPS is computed as follows:
June 30,  June 30, June 30,

2016 2015 2014
Net income (loss) attributable to equity holders (a) 2292500 £320490 (P86,982)
Common shares issued at beginning and end of year (b) 10,000 10,000 10,000
Basic/diluted earnings (loss) per share (a/b) £29.25 £32.05 (B8.70)

The Company has no dilutive potential common shares outstanding therefore basic EPS is same as
diluted EPS.



SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL RATIOS

Financial Ratios Description June 30,2016  December 31, 2015
Unaudited Audited
Current/liquidity ratio  Current assets over current liabilities 0.57 0.58
Asset to equity ratio Total asset over total equity 40.67 8§3.06
Debt to equity ratio Total liabilities over total equity 39.67 82.06
June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2014
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
EBITDA margin Eamings before interest, tax and
depreciation and amortization over
total revenue 48% 48% 5%



OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Company has no other information that needs to be disclosed other than disclosures made under SEC
Form 17-C, if any.
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